AADHARSHILA INFRATECH
PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 15™" (Fifteenth) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the
members of Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Monday,
21% July 2025 at 2:00PM at Registered Office of the Company at Plot No. 8, Main Road, Opposite
CNG Petrol Pump, Goverdhan Vilas, Udaipur, Rajasthan-313001 to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt:
a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended 31t March 2025 together with the Report of Auditors and Directors
thereon; and :

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended 31t March 2025 together with the Report of Auditors thereon.

2. To approve the Final Dividend on Preference Shares and Equity Shares for the financial
year ended 315 March 2025.

You are requested to make it convenient to attend the meeting.

Deepali Mundra
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A66853

Date: 25.06.2025
Place: Udaipur

Registered Office: Plot No. 8 Main Road, Opposite CNG Petrol Pump, Goverdhan Vilas, Udaipur, Rajasthan -313001, India
Ph. No.: +91-294-2946990; Email: infrarajasthan@gmail.com, Website: www.aadharshilainfra.com
CIN: U45200RJ2010PTC066826




NOTES:

AMEMBERENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND, ON A POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY.

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48
hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form is appended with admission slip.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more
than 10% of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10%
of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and
such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Any documents and papers referred to in this notice and as required by the Companies Act, 2013 shall be
available for inspection between 11:00AM to 1:00PM on all working days at the registered office of the
Company and the same shall also be available during the meeting.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28™ May 2025 had recommended a final dividend of Rs.
1.00 per Preference share and Rs. 30,900.00 per Equity share. The Record Date fixed for determining
entitlement of Members to final dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, if approved at the
AGM, is Friday, 11 July 2025.



ATTENDANCE SLIP

Regd. Folio No: .............cc....... No. of Share held: ...

*DPID: s *ClientID:
| certify that | am a member / proxy for the member of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 15" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 21 July

2025 at Plot No. 8, Main Road, Opposite CNG Petrol Pump, Goverdhan Vilas, Udaipur, Rajasthan-313001.

Name of the Member / Proxy Signature of the Member / Proxy
(In BLOCK letters)

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.



[Pursuant to section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies

Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN

U45200RJ2010PTC066826

Name of the Company

AADHARSHILA INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered office

Plot No 8 Main Road, Opposite CNG Petrol Pump Goverdhan Vilas, Udaipur,

Rajasthan, India, 313001

Name of the member(s):
Registered Address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

1/We, being the member(s) of

. Name:

shares of the abovenamed company, hereby appoint

E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature:

or failing him

. Name:

E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 15™ Annual General Meeting
of the Company, to be held on Monday, 21° July 2025 at 2:00PM at Plot No 8 Main Road, Opposite CNG Petrol
Pump Goverdhan Vilas, Udaipur, Rajasthan, India, 313001 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

Note:

S. No. Resolution(s) For Against
1. To receive, consider and adopt:
a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31t March 2025 together with the Report of Auditors
and Directors thereon; and
b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31t March 2025 together with the Report of Auditors
thereon.
2. To approve the Final Dividend on Preference Shares and Equity Shares for the
financial year ended 31°* March 2025.
Signed this day of , 2025
Signature of shareholder: Affix X 1
Revenue
Signature of Proxy holder(s): Stamp

1. This form, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Itis optional to put (“v”) in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the box. If you leave the
‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner
as he /she thinks appropriate.




Route Map to venue of the Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, 215 July 2025 at 2:00PM

Jaipur Power Solut

¥ Q

hite Fresoo
9
- Hargh Comunication

¢lla Mita Mandi Shige gamer Dagh

Marvel Water Pa.'r.@
+

VT et fe

-
Pl il
¥ black park
ety e
4
7 : Abdharanda infratech
- £ i 1 @ Sachehar
; 9 "Pm ate Limited ardidaipur
=~|r--:¢:a-:|:-cu:.° HOTEL SHREE JIVILA
IRV AL

wand Hartage Tearpnea
pée Lt InrMotel Udiipir : -
. y Q 9 OY0 Hotel Data Shtee
I¥0 Fiem
. Q ! Q";‘.'.el"é‘”."lpal.!':f ve

Aghar Seva Ke:

JaipurGolden Ti

LDmMpany i
Hilech Automohies o
ipear
et
Frerom
&
-
g Google >
; Frisay Progurt Feedhack




To
The Members,

DIRECTORS® REPORT

Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 157 {Fifteenth) Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2025.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The financial highlights of your Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 are as under:
{Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from Operations 5,790.24 860.17 5,790.24 860.17
Other Income 7,897.28 6,523.33 7,897.28 6,523.33
Total Income 13,687.52 7,383.50 13,687.52 7,383.50
Less: Expenses {(9,046.45) {685.18) {9,046.45) (685.18)
Less: Profit from associates - - 105.97 {68.23)
Profit/{Loss) before tax 4,641.07 6,698.32 4,747.04 6,630.09
Less: Tax Expense (129.67) (1,708.87) 129.67 (1,708.87)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 4,511.40 4,989.45 4,617.37 4,921.22

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

On Standalone basis

During the year under review, the Company has reported total income of Rs. 13,687.52 Lakh as compared to
Rs. 7,383.50 Lakh in the financial year 2023-24.

Profit after tax for the year ended 31° March 2025 is Rs. 4,511.40 Lakh as compared to the Profit after tax of
Rs. 4,989.45 Lakh for the year ended 31 March 2024.

On Consolidated basis
During the year under review, the Company has reported total income of Rs. 13,687.42 Lakh as compared to
Rs. 7,383.50 Lakh in the financial year 2023-24.

Profit after tax for the year ended 31° March 2025 is Rs. 4,617.37 Lakh as compared to the Profit after tax of
Rs. 4,921.22 Lakh for the year ended 31% March 2024.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of Company’s business during the Financial Year 2024-25,

CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

During the year, there was no change in the capital structure of the Company. As on 31* March 2025, The
Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital stood at Rs. 95,01,00,000 consisting of 9,50,00,000

Preference Share of Rs. 10/- each and 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Company has not issued any
equity shares with differential rights, sweat equity shares or bonus shares.

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs}
As on 31 March 2025, details of Non-convertible Debentures issued by the Company are as follows:

Registered Office: Plot No. 8 Main Road, Opposite CNG Petrol Pump, Goverdhan Vilas, Udaipur, Rajasthan -313001, India
Th. No.: +91-294-2946990; Lmail: infrarajasthang@pmail.com, Website: www.aadharshilainfra.com
CIN: U45200RJ2010PTC066826 ; e /&Q*
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S. Description of NCD Face Value | Outstanding Balance Name of
No. per NCD as on 31.03.2025 Dehenture
) Trustee
1 Senior, Rated, Listed, Unsecured Rs. 54,612.50 Rs. 8,191.88 Lakhs | Axis Trustee
Redeemable, Non-Cumulative, Services Limited
Taxable, Non-Convertible
Debentures

The aforesaid NCD’s are listed on Wholesale Debt Market Segment of BSE Limited. The annual listing fee for
the Financial Year 2025-26 has been paid to the stock exchange. The details of Debenture Trustee are
available on the Company’s website at hitps://aadharshilainfra.com/investor-grievance.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on 28" May 2025, had recommended the final dividend of Rs.
1.00 per Preference share involving a cash outflow of Rs. 950 Lakhs and Rs. 30,900.00 per Equity share
involving a cash outflow Rs. 3,090 Lakhs for the Financial Year 2024-25, subject to the approval of
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
During the financial year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to the reserves of the
Company.

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURES
As on 31% March 2025, the Company was having 1 {One) Associate i.e. Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private
Limited (“NMHPL"). However, the Company does not have any Subsidiary or Joint Ventures.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
During the year under review there were no significant and material orders were passed by any regulator or
court or tribunal impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
There have been no material changes and/ or commitment affecting the financial position of your company
which has occurred from the end of the financial year upto the date of signing of this Report.

AUDITOR & AUDITORS REPORT

Statutory Auditors

M/S JLN US & Company, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101543W) were appointed by the Shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 5™ August 2024 as Statutory Auditors for a period of five
consecutive years to hold office from 14" Annual General Meeting upto the conclusion of the 19® Annual
General Meeting. They have audited the financial statements of the Company for the Financial Year under
review.

The observations of Statutory Auditors in their Report read with relevant Notes to Accounts are self-
explanatory and therefore do not require further explanation. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation, or adverse remark. Further, there was no incidence of fraud reported by the
Statutory Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other than those which are reportable to the Central
Government.

Internal Auditors .
The provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the appointment of internal auditor
were not applicable on the Company for Financial Year ended 31% March 2025.




Secretarial Auditors
The provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to conduct of Secretarial Audit were not
applicable on the Company for Financial Year ended 31 March 2025.

Cost Auditors
The Provision of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to conduct of Cost Audit was not
applicable to the Company for Financial Year ended 315 March 2025.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the financial year under review, appointment of Mr. Kishan Kantibhai Vachhani (DIN:10337953), Mr.
Ramesh Chandra Mehta (DIN:10337950) and Mr. Rahul Agarwal (DIN:08040719) were regularized as Director
from Additional Director in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 5" August 2024. Except this,
there was no change in the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Your Company is not required to appoint an Independent Director. Thus, the requirement to obtain
declaration from Independent Director is not applicable on the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors
Responsibility Statement, your Directors hereby confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
and there are no material departures;

b)  they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the companyat the end of thefinancial yearand of the profit and loss of
the company for the financial year;

c)  they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)  they had prepared the annual accounts an a going concern hasis; and

e)  the Company being unlisted sub clause (e) of Section 134(3) is not applicable.

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo, as required to be disclosed under the Act are given below:

A. Conservation of energy

In view of the nature of the business activities of
i. | the steps taken or impact on conservation of the Company, no substantial steps are required
energy to be taken for conservation of energy.
ii. | the steps taken by the company for utilizing in view of the nature of the business activities of
alternate sources of energy the Company, no substantial steps are required
to be taken for alternate sources of energy.
iii. | the capital investment on energy conservation Nit
equipments

— -
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B. Technology absorption
i. | the efforts made towards technology absorption | No specific efforts made other than in the

‘ ordinary course of execution of the Project.
ii. | the benefits derived like product improvement,‘ Not Applicable

cost reduction, product development or import
substitution

iii. | in the case of imported technology (imported There was no substantial technology imported
during the last three years reckoned from the during the period under review.

beginning of the financial year)

a. the details of technology imported

b. the year of import

c¢. whether the technology has been fully
absorbed

d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof
iv. | the expenditure incurred on Research and Nil
Development

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo
i. | Foreign Exchange earnings NIL (Previous year Rs. NIL)
it | Foreign Exchange outgo NIL (Previous year Rs. NIL)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY {CSR)
During the Financial Year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 relating to
Corporate Social Responsibility were not applicable to the company.

DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of principal or
interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Your Company falls within scope of the definition “Infrastructure Company” as provided by the Companies
Act, 2013. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act with regards to
Loans, Guarantees and Investments except section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of
investments are set out in note no. 6 to the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.

CONTRACT AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the Financial Year 2024-2025, all Related Party Transactions entered into by your Company with
related parties were in ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis. Further, details of material
contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company on an arm’s length basis are disclosed in Form
AOC-2 as Annexure-| to the Director’s Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the Financial year under review, the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, are not applicable to the Company.




MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Details of Board meetings held during financial year 2024-25 alongwith attendance of directors therein are
as under:

S. | Date of Board Meeting | Mr. Kishan Kantibhai Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mr. Rahul
No. Vachhani Mehta Agarwal
1. 05-04-2024 Yes Yes No
2. 21-05-2024 Yes Yes No
3 28-05-2024 Yes Yes Yes
4. 18-07-2024 Yes Yes Yes
5. 13-08-2024 Yes Yes Yes
6. 10-09-2024 Yes Yes No
7. 20-09-2024 Yes Yes No
8. 14-10-2024 Yes Yes No
9. 14-11-2024 Yes Yes Yes
10. 20-01-2025 Yes Yes No
11. 13-02-2025 Yes Yes Yes
Meetings eligible to attend 11 11 11
Meetings attended 11 11 5

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act,
2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The provisions of Section 177 relating to the constitution of the Audit Committee are not applicable to the
Company.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The provisions of Section 178 relating to the constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are not applicable to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has established a comprehensive risk management framework and policy designed to
proactively identify, assess, and mitigate potential risks. The Board of Directors regularly reviews significant
risks impacting the Company and implements appropriate strategies to effectively manage and minimize
them.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE WORKPLACE

Your Company believes that all the women employees should have the opportunity to work in an
environment tree from any conduct which can be considered as Sexual Harassment. The Company is
committed to treating every employee with dignity and respect.

Your Company has in place a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace. This policy
is in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prahibition & Redressal} Act, 2013. All employees, whether permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees
are covered under this Policy.




VIGIL MECHANISM
During the Financial year under review, the provisions of Section 177(9) of Companies Act, 2013 relating to
establishment of vigil mechanism are not applicable to the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has a strong and well-embedded system of internal controls. This ensures that all assets are
safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and all transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The internal control system has been designed to ensure that
financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial and other statements and for maintaining
accountability for assets. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses
in the design or operation were observed.

ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3}{a} of the Act, the Annual Return as on 31% March 2025 is
available on the weblink i.e. hittps://aadharshilainfra.com/annual-return of the Company’s website.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
During the year under review Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by the
Institute of Companies Secretaries of india.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

1. The Company has neither made any application, nor any proceedings are pending under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

2. The Company has not entered into any one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institutions,
hence disclosure under rule (8)(5){xii) of Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014 is not applicable.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Board acknowledges the support and co-operation received from all its stakeholders including
shareholders as well as regulatory authorities during the year. '

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

(Rre \

Ramesh Chandra Mehta M%
Director ;reci/or
DIN: 10337950 DIN: 10337953

Place: Udaipur
Date: 28.05.2025




ANNEXURE |

Form No. AGC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) '

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto,

1. Details of contracts or arr

or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

 Name(s) of the related party | Nature of | Duration of the | Salient terms of the | Date(s) of | Amount paid as | Date on which the special resolution was
and nature of rel /arrang ftr | contracts/ contracts or arrangements | approval by the | advances {if | passed in general meeting as required under
ansactions arrang ts/t | or tr: including | Board, if any: any) first proviso to section 188
ransactions the value, if any:
Not Applicable
2. Detalls of material or arrang t or tr; ctions at arm’s length basis:
. Name(s) of the related party | Nature of | Duration of the contracts/ | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Date(s)ofapproval | Amount paid as
and nature of relatlonship contracts/ arrangements/ transactions transactions including the value, If any: by the Board, if | advances
arrangement/ any: {if any, in Rs.
transactions Lakhs}
G R Infraprojects Limited Testing of materials | 1% April 2024 till 31%* March | Testing of materials in the laboratory and survey of project 05.04.2024 Nil
(Emdtaphis® am widh Koaf | and Survey of 2025 sites
&"W Sapeisfitat dnflusmsy project sites. Value of transaction during the year: Rs. 651.73 Lakh
R Aligarh  Kanpur Highway | Operation and 1 April 2024 il 31* March- | Operation and Maintenance Contract at project site. 20.09.2024 Nil
Private Limited _ __ Lok Maintenance 2025 Value of transaction during the year: Rs. 609.84 Lakh
{Suosialony of Rer o %,3, P8 Contract
GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli | Operation and 1t April 2024 till 31t March | Operation and Maintenance Contract at project site. 26.02.2024 Nil
Highway Private lelted “}: PR Maintenance 2025 Value of transaction during the year: Rs. 839.96 Lakh
{Ewbsidiary § Tdud } Contract
GR  Phagwara Expressway Operation and 1% April 2024 till 31%* March | Operation and Maintenance Contract at project site. 26.02.2024 Nil
Limited Maintenance 2025 Value of transaction during the year: Rs. 778.74 Lakh
wdag Tnlva 3
iamﬁéaiwv% STt P contract
Porbandar Dwarka Expressway | Operation and 13t April 2024 till 31% March | Operation and Maintenance Contract at project site. 26.02.2024 Nit
Private L|m1ted Maintenance 2025 Value of transaction during the year: Rs. 603.18 Lakh
£ b i wﬁm 1%{3% : g the y
| Contract
Varanasi Sangam Expressway Operation and 150 April 2024 till 31 March | Operation and Maintenance Contract at project site. 26.02.2024 Nil
anate lentedﬂg -5 Lok Maintenance 2025 Value of transaction during the year: Rs. 725.34 Lakh
g sty 4| Contract

Place: Udaipur
Date: 28.05.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

W a
T .
Ramesh Chandra Mehta sﬁa{ ibhai Vachh
Director rectof
DIN: 10337950 DIN: 10337953




JLN US & C(

Chartered fccountants

475, First Floor, Vishwakarma Complex

Near Paragon Mobile, inside Udiapole

Udaipur 313001, Rajasthan, India

Mobile : +91-98280 58602, +91-98280 52131

Email : maheshmenaria@gmail.com
jinusudaipur@gmail.com

Web : www.jinus.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AADHARSHILA INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of AADHARSHILA
INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at
31st March 2025, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its profit, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by
ICAT and specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Respansihilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is




AADHARSHILA INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
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opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. .

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure - | a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply, in material
respect, with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Reportin Annexure 1.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i)

i)

iif)

iv)

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a
material impact its financial position;

Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material
foreseeable losses on its long term contracts that may require any
provisioning

In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the reporting under
this clause is not applicable.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief and, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
{“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and '

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (a) and (b} contain any material misstatement.

As stated in Note 13 to the Standalone Financial Statements:
(a) No interim dividend was declared and paid by the Company during the
year or up to the date of this report.
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(b) No dividend was declared or paid in respect of the previous financial
year. ,

(c) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a final dividend for
the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which is subject to the approval of
the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend
proposed is in accordance with the provisions of Section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013, as applicable.

vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording
audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved
by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Other Matter

The Standalone Financial Statements of the company for the previous year ended March
31, 2024 were audited by the predecessor audit firm and the auditor has expressed
unmodified opinion on such financial statements.

We draw attention to Note 38(ix) of the financial statements, which describes that the
NABL accreditation of the Company was withdrawn during the year pursuant to a
complaint received. As stated in the said note, the Company intends to reapply for the
accreditation after the applicable cooling-off period. The management represents that
there is no impact on the ongoing business operations and cash flows of the Company
during this intervening period. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101543W

S

CA Mah enaria
Partner
M No. 400828

UDIN: 25400828BMIDAC6453

Udaipur, May 28, 2025
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Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors Report

Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of AADHARSHILA
INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2025

1)

i)

iii)

iv)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of the company, the Company has a regular
programme of physical verification of all of its Property, Plant and Equipment’s
(PPE) by which all PPEs are physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed
to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of the company, the company does not hold any
immovable property (other than the immovable property where the company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).
Accordingly, the reporting under this clause is not applicable on the company.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of the company, the company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right to Use assets) or intangible assets
or both during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under this clause is not
applicable on the company.

(e} According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of the company, there are no proceedings which have
been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding Benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and
rules made thereunder.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is engaged in the business of providing testing services in the real estate
sector and other civil work related services. As such, it does not hold any
inventories. Accordingly, the reporting requirements under clause (ii}) of
paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting
requirements under sub-clause {a}, (b) and (c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of
which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the
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v)

vi)

vii)

viii)

ix)

xi)

reporting requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit.
Consequently, the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. The same is not
applicable to the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
records of the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and service
tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities in India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
undisputed amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as
at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
applicable statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during

the year.

Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of
information and explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion
that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks / Financial
Institutions. The company dees not have any horrowings from government,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
term loans taken by the company have been ultimately utilised for the purpose for
which they were taken.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order
is not applicable.
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xii)

xiii)

xiv)

xv)

xvi})

xvii}

xviii}

Xix)

XX)

xxi)

Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the
true and fair view of the Standalone Financial Statements and as per the
information and explanations given to us by the management, we report that we
have neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the
company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the management.

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements
under clause (xii} of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the company with related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on the information and explanations provided to us and our audit
procedures, the Company does not have an internal audit system as it is not
applicable considering its size and nature of business. Consequently, there are no
internal audit reports to be considered for the period under audit.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurancc as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
them.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - IA of the Reserve
Bank of India, 1934.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5} of section 135 of the Act
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pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order
are not applicable.

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 10 w

CA Mahesh Menaria
Partner

M No. 400828 &
UDIN: 25400828BMIDAC6453

Udaipur, May 28, 2025
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Annexure - II to the Independent Auditors Report

Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of AADHARSHILA
INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AADHARSHILA
INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction
with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN/1Q1543W

/k

CA Mahesh Menaria
Partner

M No. 400828
UDIN: 25400828BMIDAC6453

Udaipur, May 28, 2025
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1.

2.1

General Information

Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited, (‘the Company’) is a private limited company domiciled in India,
with its registered office situated at Plot No. 8 Main Road, Opposite CNG Petrol Pump, Goverdhan Vilas
Udaipur-313001 Rajasthan, India - . The Company has been incorporated on 30 June 2010 under the
provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1956.

Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited (“Company”) is an ISO-certified company specializing in highway
building materials testing, including chemical, mechanical, and non-destructive testing (NDT). The
company operates a modern laboratory at its registered office and offers comprehensive services in
QC/QA, R&D, field investigations, and design of pavements and airport runways.

With a track record of 500+ infrastructure projects across India, AIPL also provides Operations &
Maintenance (O&M) services, including Micro-surfacing of bituminous pavements using advanced
pavement preservation techniques.

In addition, AIPL is a Sponsor of Indus Infra Trust (formerly Bharat Highways InvIT) and earns returns
on its sponsorship investment, adding strategic value to its infrastructure portfolio.

As these are the Company’s second standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been
applied pervious year ended as on 31 March 2024. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has
affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
is provided in Note 33.

The Standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors on May 28, 2025.

Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These Standalone financial statements are comprise of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Shareholders” Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for
the year then ended and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory notes
(collectively, the “Standalone Financial Statements”) prepared in accordance with applicable provision of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements. The Company has prepared the financial statements
on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

¢ financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments)

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (?). All amounts have been rounded-

off to the negyest:l uwed:tajge disclosed and
P h \'\\a ‘\ﬁ{,}“




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

do not appear due to rounding-off are expressed as 0.00. The standalone financial statements provide
comparative information in respect of the previous period.

Summary of material accounting policies

The following are the material accounting policies applied by the company in preparing its Standalone

financial statements:

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current

classification. An asset is current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

o tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue
of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

b. Foreign currency transaction
Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements of the Company are presented using Indian Rupee (%), which is also
the functional currency i.e. currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates.

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Company
at the Spot rates on the date of the transaction or at an average rate if the average rate approximates the
actual rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reportlng date. Exchange differences
are recognized in profit or loss.

c. Financial instruments

[ 400828 ¥ <
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i. Initial recognition

Financial instruments i.e. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The classification of financial assets at
initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which Company has applied the practical expedient, Company initially
measures a financial instrument at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial instruments (other than financial instruments at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial instruments. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial instruments assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Financial Assets - Subsequent Measurement

The Company are subsequently measured all financial assets at amortized cost (amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR) using effective interest method except for financial assets carried at fair value through Profit
and Loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income respectively. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in
the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - Equity Instrument:

The Company has elected to classify its equity investments at fair value through OCI. Financial assets at
FVOCI are initially recognized at transaction value (fair value) and subsequently measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in OCI.
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as
other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except
when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Such instruments are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL):

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. Financial assets at are initially
recognized at transaction value (fair value) and subsequently measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

iii. Financial Assets - Derecognition

The Company is derecognized financial asset primarily when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

iv. Financial Assets - Impairment
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At each date of balance sheet, The Company assesses whether a financial asset carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment losses. The Company follow the simplified approach for recognition of
impairment allowance on all trade receivable and/or contract assets. The application of the simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment
allowance based on lifetime. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if
the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets and recognized in the statement of profit and losses under the head of "Other
Expenses”.

v. Financial liabilities - Classification

Financial liabilities issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.

vi. Financial liabilities - Subsequent Measurement

Loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR),
except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss through the EIR amortisation process. Amortisation arising on unwinding of the financial liabilities
as per EIR is included as a part of Finance Costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities recognised at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss.

vii. Financial Liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

viii. Reclassification

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets, such as equity instruments designated at FVTPL
or FVOCI and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made
only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.

ix. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

d. Fair values measurement

The Company measurement financial instrument, such as derivative, investment and mutual fund at fair
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The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as fair value of total assets, unquoted financial assets measured at fair value and for
non-recurring fair value measurement such as asset under the scheme of business undertaking.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

The Company has an established control framework with respect of fair values. This includes a financial
reporting team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements and
reports directly to Board of Directors.

The financial reporting team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
If third party information, such as pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the financial
reporting team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these
valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

e. Equity Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The Company’s has elected to recognize investments in associates at cost in accordance with the option
available in Ind AS 27, Separate Standalone financial statements. Investments are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment Josses (if any). Where an indication of impairment exists, the Company tests these
investments for impairment in accordance with the policy applicable to ‘Impairment of non-financial
assets’ and the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in  associates, the dlfference between net disposal
proceeds and carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and Ios;;f
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f. Property, plant and equipment and Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of PPE comprises its
purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates and any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
intended use. The cost of a self-constructed item of PPE comprises the cost of materials and direct labour
and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use.

When significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of PPE. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Items such as spare parts and servicing equipment are recognised as PPE if they meet the definition of PPE
and are expected to be used for more than one year. All other items of spares and servicing equipments are
classified as item of Inventories.

An item of PPE is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipments is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. '

Depreciation

Depreciation on PPE is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as prescribed
under Schedule II of the Act except below property plant and equipment which is based on technical
evaluation done by the management and they believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Asset Management estimate
of useful life
Buildings other than factory buildings 3 years
Plant and equipment 3-15 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Fixtures and fittings 10 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its
estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets.

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / upto the date on which
asset is ready for use / disposed off.

Capital work in progress
Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on balance sheet date is shown as capital work in progress.
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any Advances given

towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balancg sheet date are disclosed
7 e

as other non-current assets.
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. Intangible assels

Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such intangible
assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation and amortisation
in Financial statement.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
- Software 3 to 5 years

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted if appropriate.

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an
intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the intangible asset and is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is -
derecognised.

h. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an
individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to disposal and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators. The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets
and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment loss are reduce from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU (or
group of CGUs).

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews
hether there is any indication that the loss has decrgfése f@pdgﬂ§§ex1sts An
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impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

i. Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

i. Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets.

Lease term which is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company uses
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals/termination options).

The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use of Assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will
exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any,
and adjusted for certain re measurements of the lease liability.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined. After the commencement
date, lease liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payment made.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including
in-substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Modifications to a lease

agreement beyond the original terms and conditions are generally accounted for as a re-measurement of

the lease liability with a corresponding adjustment to the ROU asset. Any gain or loss on modification is

recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. However, the modifications that increase the scope of the

lease by adding the xj use one or more underlying assets at a price conﬁhensg;a\{egwjgkgwthe stand-
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alone selling price are accounted for as a separate new lease. In case of lease modifications, discounting
rates used for measurement of lease liability and ROU assets is also suitably adjusted.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of all
the assets that have a lease term of twelve months or less with no purchase option and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ii. Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income.

j.  Revenue from contracts with customer
'The accounting policies for the specific revenue streams of the Company as stmmarized below:

i Service contract

Service contracts (including operation and maintenance contracts and job work contracts) in which the
company has the right to consideration from the customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the
value to the customer of the company’s performance completed to date, revenue is recognized when
services are performed and contractually billable.

ii Contract modifications

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether
the services added to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling
price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those
that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are
priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new contract
if not priced at the standalone selling price.

iii Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer.
If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial instrument
section.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has

received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the c7stome1; If-a-customer pays
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consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

iv Income from scrap sales and others

Income from scrap sales and other ancillary sales is recognised when the control over the goods is
transferred to the customers.

v Dividend income, interest income and insurance claim
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method in accordance Ind AS 109.

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/expected to be admitted and to the
extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.

k. Employee benefits

1 Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected
to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan in the form of provident fund are a post-employment benefit plan under which
an entity pays fixed contributions and the company has no legal or constructive obligation other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services
are rendered by employees.

iii Accumulated Leave

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The
Company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service.

I. Taxes

Current income tax

Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax.

Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date. /| =y

Deferred tax
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Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets —unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/
reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will
be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equily. In this case, the lax is alsu recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Goods and service tax taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and service taxes paid, except: when the tax
incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case,
the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable or when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

m. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the period
in which they are incurred. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete.

n. Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are measure based on management’s estimate required to settle
the obligation at the balance sheet date and are discounted the expected future cash flows (representing
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pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision
is reversed.

Contingencies
Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that

may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

0. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as honus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

p- Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments of Company.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire property and equipment and intangible assets.

q. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as they
are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

t. Exception item

Exceptional items are generally non-recurring items of income and expense within profit or loss from
ordinary activities, which are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain
the performance of the Company for the year.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumption

The preparation of the standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. }Uncer ‘?@J&lt these
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assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the Standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

The following are the key judgement, estimation and assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
ycar.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Company uses market observable
data to the extent available. Where such Level 1 inpuls are nol available, the Company eslablishes
appropriate valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flows (DCF) model and inputs to the
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

Determination of the estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and the assessment as to which
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of these assets is based on the life prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on technical estimates, taking into account the Company’s
historical experience with similar assets, nature of the asset, estimated usage, expected residual values and
operating conditions of the asset. Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable at each
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. The depreciation for future periods is revised if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and
the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the
long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual
results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on
reasonable estimates.

3. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

]
3.1. New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments adopted by the Company /:; f:/ {’
- . 1/ Ny

o)

&e




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the standalone financial statements are consistent
except for amendments to the existing Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company applied for the first-time these amendments.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments had no impact on the Company’s
Standalone financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement
to disclose their “material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments have had an impact
on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or
presentation of any items in the Company’s standalone financial statements.

" Apart from these, consequéntial amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS
101, Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS109, Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 34,

3.2. Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the
Company’s standalone financial statements.
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Standalone Balance Sheet
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Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Plant, Property and Equipment 4 1,293.35 1,074.44
(b)  Other intangible assets 4 0.05 0.07
(¢} Financial assets
(i) Investment 6 72,523.75 73,919.20
(i) Other financial assets 5 1.63 1.63
(d) Other non-current assets 7 0.65 0.65
(e) Tax assets 8 830.15 7249
Total Non-Current Assets 74,649.58 75,068.48
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 9 3,021.76 337.33
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 111.87 201.24
(iif) Other bank balances 11 639.59 866.20
(b) Other current assets 7 10.19 70.15
Total Current Assets 3,783.41 1,474.92
Total assets 78,432.99 76,543.40
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 1.00 1.00
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 13 9,408.45 9,408.45
(c) Other Equity 14 10,159.13 5,647.73
Total Equity 19,568.58 15,057.18
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 6,278.17 12,524.89
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 27 1,378.09 1,699.40
Total Non-Current Liabilities 7,656.26 14,224.30

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 48,530.83 47,207.67
(ii) Trade payables - total outstanding dues of

(a) micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 3.25 -
(b) creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 2,411.27 29.95
(c) other Financial Liabilities 18 17.34 9.82
(b) Other current liabilities 19 245.46 14.49
(c) Current tax liabilities (net) - -
Total Current Liabilities 51,208.15 47,261.93
Total Liabilities 58,864.41 61,486.22
Total equity and liabilities 78,432.99 76,543.40
Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2-3
Notes to financial statements 4-39

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
CIN U45200R]2010PTC066826

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2025

% in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 20 5,790.24 860.17
Other income 21 7,897.28 6,523.33
Total income 13,687.52 7,383.50
Expenses
Civil Cost 22 4,904.36 149.68
Employee benefits expense 23 273.63 184.98
Finance costs 24 2,347.61 173.74
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 25 152.80 113.50
Other expenses 26 1,368.05 63.28
Total expenses 9,046.45 685.18
Profit before tax 4,641.07 6,698.32
Tax expense:
Current tax 27 472.55 44.25
Adjustment of income tax related to earlier periods 27 (21.57) -
Deferred tax
charge 27 (321.31) 1,664.62
Total tax expenses 129.67 1,708.87
Profit for the year 4,511.40 4,989.45
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) . -
Income tax relating to above - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,511.40 4,989.45
Earnings per share
(Nominal value of share Rs.10 each)
Basic (Rs.) 35 35,613.98 49,894.48
Diluted (Rs.) 35 35,613.98 49,894.48
Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2-3
Notes on financial statements 4-39

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date

R
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e

For JLN US AND COMPANY Ramesh Chandra Mehta
Chartered Accountants Director
Firm's Reg. No. 101543W DIN: 10337950
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Date : 28 May 2025
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Partner LBy Al Company Secretary
Membership No: 400828 ICSI Membership No. A66853
Place: Udaipur Place: Udaipur

Date : 28 May 2025 Date : 28 May 2025
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Directo:
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Place: Udaipur
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Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
CIN U45200R]2010PTC066826
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 March 2025 Zin Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 4,641.07 6,698.32
Adjustments for:
Interest income (73.58) (166.71)
Fair value gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL 1,269.20 (6,352.62)
Finance costs 2,347.61 173.74
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 152.80 113.50
Operating Profit before working capital changes 8,337.10 466.23
Working capital adjustments :
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (2,684.43) (171.38)
Increase in trade payables 2,384.57 9.34
Decrease / {(Increase) in other financial and non financial assets 59.96 7.89
Increase in financial and non-financial liabilities 238.49 4.10
Cash generated from operating activities 8,335.69 316.18
Income tax paid (net, of refunds) (1,208.64) (132.09)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 7,127.05 184.09
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 73.58 166.71
(Investments) in bank deposits (net) 226.61 (866.20)
(Investment) in units of Bharat highways invIT 126.26 (66,450.00)
(Investment) in associate company - (1,116.58)
(Purchase) of Plant & Equipments (371.67) (326.39)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (B) 54.78 (68,592.46)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (2,347.61) (173.74)
Proceeds from preference shares “ 9,408.45
{Repayment) of non-current borrowings - -
Proceeds from non-current borrowings (4,923.56) 59,122.23
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C) (7,271.17) 68,356.94
Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (89.37) (51.43)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 201.24 252.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 111.87 201.24
Notes:
1 Cash and cash equivalents comprises of (refer note 10) Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Balances with banks:
- Current accounts
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year

111.87

201.24

111.87

201.24

2 The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 "Statement of

Cash Flows".
3. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities in terms of Ind AS 7: Ein Lakhs
Asat Others Asat
1 April 2024 Net cash flow 31 March 2025
Non-current borrowings 59,732.56 (7,271.17) 2,347.61 54,809.00
Total 59,732.56 (7,271.17) 2,347.61 54,809.00
Asat Others Asat
1 April 2023 Net cash flow 31 March 2024
Non-current borrowings 610.33 58,948.49 173.74 59,732.56
Total 610.33 58,948.49 173.74 59,732.56
4 Figures in brackets represent outtiows.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2-3
Notes on financial statements 4-39

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements

- As per our report of even date

For JLN US AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
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Date : 28 May 2025
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Company Secretary
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Place: Udaipur
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Date : 28 May 2025




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
CIN U45200R]J2010PTC066826

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital Zin Lakhs
Particulars Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 31 March 2024 10,000 1.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 10,000 1.00

B. Instruments entirely equity in nature
Preference Share Capital Zin Lakhs
(a) 10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Particulars Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 31 March 2024 95,000,000 9,500.00
Changes in Preference Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Changes in Preference share capital during the year - -
Add/Less:- Issue Expenses (refer note no. 13) - (91.55)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 95,000,000 9,408.45
C. Other Equity &in Lakhs
. Retained Debenture redemption Total
Particulars s ;
Earnings reserve Other equity
Balance as at 31 March 2023 658.28 - 658.28
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023
Profit for the year 4,989.45 4,989.45
Items of other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve (1,500.00) 1,500.00 -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4,147.73 1,500.00 5,647.73
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024 - - -
Profit for the year 4,511.40 - 4,511.40
Items of other comprehensive income for the year , net of taxes - - -
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve 680.81 (680.81) -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 9,339.94 819.19 10,159.13

Basis of preparalion, measurement and significant accounting policies
Notes on financial statements

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For JLN US AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No. 101543W

CA Mahesh Menaria
Partner

Membership No: 400828
Place: Udaipur

Date : 28 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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/N“QMW

Ramesl{wghandrea Mehta

Director

DIN: 10337950

Place: Udaipur

Date : 28 May 2025

A
Deepali Mundra
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A66853
Place: Udaipur
Date : 28 May 2025
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k i;hax?Kantibhai Vachhani

Directo
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Place: Udaipur
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Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

4 Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets Zin Lakhs
o, . Other Intangible
B rop-erty, plant and equipment Tg;?llaizoai?;y, Assets Total Other

Building Shed Plant & Machine F“;T)::::s& Office Equipments Computers Vehciles Equipments Software Intangible Assets
Cost (refer note 4.1) 3
As at 31 March 2023 1.95 840.76 6.24 241 12.53 97.54 961.43 0.19 0.19
Additions - 308.97 124 0.81 3.77 11.60 326.39 -
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 1.95 1,149.73 748 3.22 16.30 109.14 1,287.82 0.19 0.19
Additions 154 298.21 4.00 4.53 6.25 57.14 371.67 -
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2025 3.49 1,447.94 11.48 7.75 22.55 166.28 1,659.51 0.19 0.19
Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation
As at U1 April 2022 - - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 0.66 71.02 0.67 0.52 7.58 19.47 99.92 0.08 0.08
Charge for the year 0.66 90.09 0.81 0.71 345 17.74 113.46 0.04 0.04
On Disposals - - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 1.32 161.11 148 1.23 11.03 37.21 213.38 0.12 0.12
Charge for the year 0.84 122.05 122 175 3.84 23.08 152.78 0.02 0.02
On Disposals - - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2025 2.16 283.16 2.70 2.98 14.87 60.29 366.16 0.14 0.14
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2024 0.63 988.62 6.00 1.99 5.27 71.93 1,074.44 0.07 0.07
As at 31 March 2025 1.33 1,164.78 8.78 477 7.68 105.99 1,293.35 0.05 0.05

Notes:

4.1 The Company has to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, plant and equipments and other intangibles as recognised in its previous GAAP (Indian accounting principle generally accepted in India as prescribed under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014), as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. April 1, 2022 as per option permitted under Ind AS 101 for the first time adoption. Accordingly, the accumulated
depreciation and amortisation as at the transition date that was eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the assats.




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025

5 Other Financial assets (Unsecured, Considered Good) %in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Non Current
Security & Other Deposit 0.13 0.13
Others 1.50 1.50
1.63 1.63
6 Investments %in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Non-current Investment

Unquoted

Investment in associate at cost

Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited (28,62,300 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) (refer note (a) below), 1,116.58 1,116.58
1,116.58 1,116.58

Quoted

Investment measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Units of Indus InfraTrust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways Invit) 71,407.17 72,802.62

(6,64,50,000 units of Rs. 100 each) (refer note (b) below)and (Note no.29) 71,407.17 72,802.62

Total 72,523.75 73,919.20

(@)

Pursuant to board of directors approval on October 31, 2023 and share purchase agreement dated October 31, 2023 entered with G R Infraprojects Limited, the Company has purchased
28,62,300 equity shares, equivelant to 21% stake of Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited for total consideration of Rs 1,116.58 lakhs.

(b) The Company being sponsor of the Indus Infra Trust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT) ("InvIT") has subscribed to 6,64,50,000 units of the InvIT of face value of Rs. 100 each,
which is equivalent to 15% of the total Units of the InvIT on a post-Issue basis for a cash consideration of Rs. 66,450.00 lakhs, by the company prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening Date (but
after the announcement of the Price Band) in accordance with the terms of the Commitment Letter dated December 6,2023

7 Other assets (Unsecured, Considered Good)
Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current
Balance with government authorities 0.65 0.65
0.65 0.65
Current
Advance to suppliers for goods and services 0.53 27.20
Prepaid expenses 6.90 5.69
Other Current Assets {(Includinhg Balance with Govt. Authorities)
GSY input receivable - 3565
GST TDS receivable 0.03 1.61
Others 27 .
10.19 70.15
10.84 70.80
8 Tax Assets X in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current
Income tax assets (net) . 830.15 72.49
830.15 7249
9 Trade Receivables
2in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cwrrent
Trade receivables 3,021.76 337.33

Less: Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) - -

3,021.76 337.33




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025

Break-up of Security details

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Movement in Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Balance as af begning of the year
Add; Allowance for the year
Less: Utilised during the year
Balance as at end of the year

Below is Trade receivables ageing schedule

3,021.76

337.33

3,021.76

337.33

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Current but P m Total
not due Less than 6 month r;“;:a: . 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

31 March 25

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good - 2,854.61 4211 1.93 0.20 12291 3,021.76
Total - 2,854.61 4211 1.93 0.20 122.91 3,021.76
31 March 24

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good - 164.69 147.48 25.16 - - 337.33
Total - 164.69 147.48 25.16 - - 337.33

Notes:-
a) Trade Receivables are non interest bearing.

h) No trade or other receivable are due fram directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other persen. Mor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

¢) Trade Receivables relating to related party.

< in Lakhs
As at As at
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Other Trade receivable 372.80 280.23
Receivable from related parties 2,648.96 57.10
3,021.76 337.33
10 Cash and cash equivalents
Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance with banks
Cash on hand 3.76 376
Balance with banks
in Current Account 108.11 182.48
Deposits with bank having original maturity of less than three months - 15.00
111.87 201.24
11 Other Bank Balances Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Nofe No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deposits with remaining maturity more than 12 months # 639.59 866.20
639.59 866.20
639.59 866.20

#Deposits lien with banks/ lenders against Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA).




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

12

13

Equity Share capital
<in Lakhs
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Authorised
10,000 Equity Shares (P.Y. 10,000) of Rs.10 each . 1.0 1.00
1.00 1.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
10,000 Equity Shares (P.Y, 10,000} of Rs.10 each 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
Reconciliation of equity share outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.
Particulars . 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
At the commencement of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Add/Less:- movement during the year - - - .
At the end of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No.of 9% of total share No. of % of total
Shares in class Shares  share in class
Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held by
- Rahul Agarwal 3,185 31.85% 3,185 31.85%
- Mehul Agarwal 2,515 25.15% 2,515 25/15%
- Riya Agarwal 4,300 43.00% 4,300 43.00%
Particulars of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Promoter name No. of Y of total Na, of Yo of tatal
Shares shares Shares shares
- Rahul Agarwal 3,185 31.85% 3,185 31.85%
- Mehul Agarwal 2,515 25.15% 2,515 25.15%
- Riya Agarwal 4,300 43.00% 4,300 43.00%

Terms & Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equily shares are
entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity
capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on
shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares,

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in
proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Instruments entirely equity in nature

Preference Share Rin Lakhs
(a) 10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Authorised
9,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each 9,500.00 9,500.00

9,500.00 9,500.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up
9,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each 9,500.00 9,500.00
(10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up )
Add/Less:- Issue Expenses (refer note below) (91.55) (91.55)

{Issue Expenses of Rs. 91.55 Lakh incurred in connection with issue of Preference Share have been reduced from the Capital in accordance with As -32
Financial Instruments: Presentation)

9,408.45 9,408.45
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)
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Reconciliation of Preference share oufstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
At the commencement of the year 95,000,000 9,500.00 - -
Add/Less:- movement during the year - - 95,000,000 9,500.00
At the end of the year 95,000,000 9,500.00 95,000,000 9,500.00
Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% Preference shares in the Company
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of % of total share No. of % of total
Shares in class Shares share in class
- Rahul Agarwal 47,500,000 50% 47,500,000 50%
- Mehul Agarwal 47,500,000 50% 47,500,000 50%
Particulars of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Promoter name No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares Shares shares
- Rahul Agarwal 47,500,000 50% 47,500,000 50%
- Mehul Agarwal 47,500,000 50% 47,500,000 50%

Terms & Rights attached to preference shares:
(2) 10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up

The company has issued 10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("NNNRPS") of face value of Rs. 10 each Fully paid up for cash by
Rahul Agarwal and Mehul Agarwal. The preference Shareholders shall carry a preferential right to dividend in priority to equity shareholders. The Preference Shareholders shall not be
entilled Lo participale in surplus funds on winding up of company, payment of dividend shall be non cununulative. The lwolder of preference shares has right 1 vole is available undy o
resolution that directly affect the rights atttached to preference shareholders. Preference shares shall be redeemable at par on the date falling immediately on expiry of 15 years from the date
of allotment of preference shares.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date i.e. March 31, 2024, the members of the Company vide their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on April 30, 2024 have approved variation in rights
attached to these NININKPS, and as per amended terms, the Company has option to convert the NININKIS into kquity Shares of Ks. 10/~ each, between 10 years to 12 years trom the date of
allotment ie. 10 to 12 years from October 31, 2023 making these NNNRPS to 10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
("NNORPS"). The conversion ratio of NNORPS into Equity Shares shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company basis book value of Equity Share on immediately
preceding financial year.

On May 28, 2025, the Board of directors of the Company approved a final dividend of ¥ 1.00 per Preference share and Rs. 30900.00 per Equity share for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM), which shall be paid after March 31, 2025.

Other equily
Xin Lakhs
Particulars Debenture
Retained .
Earnings redemption Total
reserve
Balance as at 31 March 2023 658,28 - 658.28
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023
Profit for the year 4,989.45 - 4,989.45
Items of other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve (1,500.00) 1,500.00 -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -
Balance as at 1 April 2024 4,147.73 1,500.00 5,647.73
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024
Profit for the year 4,511.40 - 4,511.40
Items of other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve 680.81 (680.81) -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 9,339.94 819.19 10,159.13

Debenture redemption reserve (‘DRR')

The company has issued redeemable non-convertible debentures and as per the Companies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (as amended) require the company to create
Debenture Redemption Reserve ('DRR') out of profits of the company available for payment of dividend. DRR is required to be created for an amount which is equal to 10% of the value of
outstanding debenlures. DRR is required to be created over the life of debentures and upon redemption of debentures, DRR is required to be transferred to retained earning.
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Non current borrowings
¥in Lakhs

Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Debentures - unsecured
Listed Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures 8,259.08 15,114.04
Less:- Unamortised Borrowing Cost-NCD (178.90) (225.11)
8,080.18 14,888.93
8,080.18 14,888.93
Total 8,080.18 14,888.93
Non-Current portion of long term borrowings 6,278.17 12,524.89
1,802.01 2,364.04

Current maturities of long term borrowings

8,080.18 14,888.93

Notes:

Debt Covenants:
The Company has satisfied all the debts covenants prescribed in the terms of respective loan/debenture agreement as at reporting date. The company

has not defaulted in any Inans/ debenture payable,

Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited has allotted 15000 no. of Rs. 1.0 Lakhs, each INR denominated, rated, listed, unsecured, redeemable, non-
cumulative, taxable non-convertible debentures on February 26, 2024. Repayment in 20 Quarterly installment as defined in the repayment schedule
enclosed with term sheet, along with quarterly payments of interest rate of interest ranging from 7.95% to 9.66% p.a.

Current borrowings Tin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loans from other Corporate
Unsecured inter corporate loans 2,071.63 1,993.63
Luans from otliers - Unsecured
Unsecured loan from relatives of Director 44,657.19 42,850.00
Current maturities of long term borrowings 1,802.01 2,364.04
Total 48,530.83 47,207.67

Terms of repayment of Inter-corporate Loans
The Company has availed unsecured loan from a NBFC Company at an interest rate of 6.50% per annum payable annually, this loan is repayable on

demand.The interest shall be payable on demand.
Unsecured loans received from relatives of the director are partialy interest free and repayment of the same shall be on demand as mutually agreed

upon.
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17  Trade payables

Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total outstanding dues of
Micro and small enterprises (MSMED) 3.25 -
Creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2411.27 29.95
241452 29.95
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
Zin Lakhs
Outstanding for the following periods
: from the due date of payment
As at 31 Mar 2025 Unbilled Less than 1 year 12 23 More than 3 years Total
years years
Due of micro and small enterprises (MSMED) - 3.25 - 325
Due of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,794.61 616.66 - 2,411.27
Disputed dues of MSMED - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSMED - - - .
Total : 1,794.61 619.91 - 2,414.52
Outstanding for the following periods
. from the due date of payment
As at 31 Mar 2024 Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 2-3 More than 3 years Total
years years
Due of micro and small enterprises (MSMED) - - - -
Due of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1.58 28.37 - 29.95
Disputed dues of MSMED - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSMED - - - -
Total 1.58 28.37 - 29.95
Notes:-
a) Trade payable are non inierest bearing and generally have credit period of 30-90 days.
b) For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 28 < in Lakhs
¢} Total outstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other Trade payables 830 27.00
Payable to related parties 2,406.22 2.95
2,414.52 29.95
d) Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
< in Lakhs

Particulars

i) The principal amanni remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;

ii) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;
iii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

v) The amnount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.

31 March 2025
325

31 March 2024

The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been made in the standalone financial statements as at the reporting date based on the information received and available with the Company.

18  Other Financial liabilities

Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Employee Dues 17.34 9.82
17.34 9.82
19  Other current liabilities
Tin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other Liabilities
Advance from customers - 4.06
GST payable 45.93 -
TDS payable 197.83 8.98
ESIC payable 017 0.19
PF employee payable 1.53 1.26
24546 14.49
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20

21

23

24

Revenue from operations
T in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers 5,790.24 860.17
5,790.24 860.17
Other income
% in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest income
- on Income tax refund 3.88 071
Discount receievd/Rewards points 0.36 0.20
Misc. income 0.32 287
Interest on term deposits 7358 166.71
Fair value gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL - 6,352.62
Short Tem Gain on Debt Mutual Fund 462 -
Dividend Received on units of Indus Infra Trust (InvIT) 4,040.16 -
Other Income on units of Indus Infra Trust (InvIT) 33.23 -
Interest Received on units of Indus Infra Trust (InvIT ) 3,741.13 -
Liabilities no longer required written back - 0.22
7,897.28 6,523.33
Civil Cost
2 in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Road tax and insurance - -
Diesel and petrol 60.55 42,60
Legal and professional and technical 97.03 85.50
Repair and maintenance 1332 9.18
Construction Material 271.78 -
Safety And Security Tool 0.70 -
Work Contract Service 4,449.20 -
Labour & Wages 291 -
Testing and quality control 8.87 1240
4,904.36 149.68
Employee benefits expenses
Zin Takhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 260.10 162.97
Contribution to provident and other fund 11.37 8.98
Staff welfare Expenses 2.16 13.03
273.63 184.98
Finance costs
% in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on Borrowing
- on debentures 832.10 114.04
-on others 1,468.41 47.59
Other borrowing costs 47.10 12,11
2,347.61 173.74
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25 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

2 in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 152.80 113.50
152.80 113.50
26 Other expenses
¥ in Lakhs
Particulars . Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fair value loss on financial assets measured at FVTPL 1,269.20 -
Tour And Traveling 35.42 20.58
Insurance 7.77 829
Freight\loading and unloading 0.77 -
Parking And Toll Tax. 7.38 417
Annual Maintaince Charges 745 4.02
Office Exp. 3.89 3.78
Electricity 229 341
Office Rent 6.62 3.00
Service Charges 0.91 2.08
Machinery Rent 7.49 -
Postage 1.35 207
Vehicle Repair/Maintenance 0.84 -
Audit Fees 1.60 1.75
Gst Expenses 1.16 -
ROC Filing Fee 0.05 1.30
Miscellaneous expenses 13.81 8.83
1,368.00 63.28
27 Tax expense
The major component of income tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 are as under:
A, Income tax (income) / expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
T in Lakhs
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current tax
Current tax on profit for the year 472.55 4425
Adjustment of income tax related to eatlier periods (21.57) .
Deflerred lax
Attributable to-
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (refer note D below) (321.31) 1,664.62
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 129.67 1,708.87
B. Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate:
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit before tax 4,641.07 6,698.32
Tax using the Company’s statutory tax rate 1,168.06 1,685.83
Non deductible expenses (1,038.39) 23.04
Taxation in respect of earlier years - .
Others - -
Tax expense 129.67 1,708.87
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C. Deferred tax balance disclosed in Balance Sheet
As on 31 March 2025 Zin Lakhs
. Deferred tax Net deferred tax
Particulars Deferred tax (assets) liabilities (assets)/ liabilities
Difference between WDV of Property, Plant And Equipment as per book and - (53.67) (63.67)
income tax
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial - (1,279.40) (1,279.40)
instrument at FVTPL
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial - (45.03) (45.03)
instrument at amortised cost
MAT credit entitlement - - -
Net deferred tax (assets) / liabilities - (1,378.09) (1,378.09)
As on 31 March 2024 ¥ in Lakhs
. . Deferred tax Net deferred tax
Particulars Deferred tax (assets) liabilities  (assets)/ liabilities
Difference between WDV of Property, Plant And Equipment as per book and - (43.92) (43.92)
income tax
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial - (1,598.83) (1,598.83)
instrument at FVIPL
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial - (56.65) (56.65)
instrument at amortised cost
Net deferred tax (assets) / liabilities - (1,699.40) (1,699.40)
D.  The movement in deferred tax assets / (liabilities) during the year ended March 31 are give below:
Particulars o "
Balance as at R::?g:;fie‘i}: pizﬁ“ Balance as at
1 April 2024 ng 31 March 2025
year
Difference between WDV of Property, Plant And Equipment as per book and income tax (43.92) (9.75) (53.67)
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial instrument at FVTPL (1,598.83) 319.43 (1,279.40)
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial instrument at amortised cost (56.65) 11.63 (45.03)
(1,699.40) 321.31 (1,378.09)

Particulars .. .
Balance as at R::?ir:zeudr;: p:;felt Balance as at

1 April 2023 & 31 March 2024

year

Difference between WDV of Property, Plant And Equipmient as per book and income tax (34.78) (9.14) (43.92)
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial instrument at FVTPL - (1,598.83) (1,598.83)
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial instrument at amortised cost - (56.65) (56.65)
(34.78) (1,664.62) (1,699.40)
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28 Related party disclosure

Related party disclosures as required under the Indian Accounting Standard (AS) - 24 on “Related Party Disclosures” are given below:

A. Related parties with whom the company had transactions during the year

(a) Key Management Personnel ("KMP"):
Mr. Aditya Agarwal (Resigned w.e.f. 16.10.2023)
Mr. Lokesh Agarwal (Resigned w.e.f. 16.10.2023)
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mehta (Appointed w.e.f.16.10.2023)
Mr. Kishan Kantibhai Vachhani (Appointed w.e.£.16.10.2023)
Mr. Rahul Agarwal (Appointed w.e.f.16.10.2023)
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Agarwal (Relatives of KMPs) (Ceased w.e.f.16.10.2023)
Ms. Deepali Mundra (Appointed w.e.f. 08.01.2024)
Mr. Harish Agarwal (Relatives of KMPs)
Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal (Relatives of KMPs)

(b) Enterprise in which KMP exercise significant influence
Lokesh Builders Private Limited {upto 16.10.2023)
G R Infraprojects Limited

(c) Associates Enterprises
Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited

(d) Entity in which company holds interest as sponsor
Sponsor
Indus Infra Trust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT) ("InvIT"}
Subsidiaries of InvIT
GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited
GR Aligarh Kanpur Highway Private Limited
GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited
GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited
GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
GR Sangli Solapur Highway Private Limited
Porbandar Dwarka Expressway Private Limited
Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited
GR Galgalia Bahadurganj Highway Private Limited

B. Related party transactions with and its closing balances
Key Management Personnel ("KMP") & Enterprise in which KMP exercise significant influence and its closing balances

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Father of Mr. Lokesh &garwal
Company Secretary

Father of Mr. Rahul Agarwal
Mother of Mr. Rahul Agarwal

-

< in Lakhs

Nature of transaction

Transactien value

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(a) Loan received
(i) Lokesh Builders Private Limited - 70.00
(if) Mr. Harish Agarwal 1,965.00 41850.00
(iii) Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal - 1000.00
(b) Loan repaid
(i) Mr. Mahendra Kumar Agarwal - 24.84
(ii) Lokesh Builders Private Limited - 70.00
(ii) Mr. Harish Agarwal 1,301.50 -
(iv) Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal 62.40 -
(c) Interest paid on unsecured loan
(i) Mr. Mahendra Kumar Agarwal - 1.35
(ii) Mr. Harish Agarwal 1,340.10 -
(d) Remuneration paid
(i) Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mehta 25.47 23.54
(if) Mr. Kishan Kantibhai Vachhani 2231 20.56
(iii) Ms. Deepali Mundra 4.55 0.97
(e) Interest and Dividend received,other receipt
(i) Indus Infra Trust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT) ("InviT*) 7,814.52 66,450.00
(f) Sale of service
G R Infraprojects Limited 651.73 332.03
GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 266.25 -
GR Aligarh Kanpur Highway Private Limited 609.84 -
GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited 473.72 -
GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 899.9¢ -
GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 778.74 ~
GR Sangli Solapur Highway Private Limited 132,51 -
Porbandar Dwarka Expressway Private Limited 603.18 -
Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 72534 -
Indus Infra Trust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT) ("InvIT") 28.55
(g) Purchase of Goods\Service
G R Infraprojects Limited
(i) Works Contract Service 4,449.20 -
(if) Other goods and Service 244.94 5.17
(h) Purchase of Shares
- 1,117.65

Purchase of Shares of Nagaur Mukundgarh
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Balance outstanding Balance outstanding
receivable/payable  receivable/payable

Particulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(a) Loan payable
(i) Mr. Mahendra Kumar Agarwal
(i) Mr. Harish Agarwal 4371959 4185000
(ili) Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal
937.60 1000.00
(b) Remuneration payable
(i) Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mehta 112 1.65
(if) Mr. Kishan Kantibhai Vachhani 2.06 1.94
(iii) Ms. Deepali Mundra 043 0.35
(c} Trade receivables
G R Infraprojects Limited 192.21 57.10
GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 116.11 -
GR Aligarh Kanpur Highway Private Limited 519.24 -
GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited 280.03 -
GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 419.87 -
GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 353.06 -
CR Sangli Solapur Highway Private Limited 36.26 -
Porbandar Dwarka Expressway Private Limited 340.90 -
Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited 362.73 -
Indus Infra Trust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT) ("InvIT") 28.55
(d) Trade payables
G R Infraprojects Limited
(i) Works Contract Service 2404.78 -
(ii) Other gonds and Service 1.45 2.95

C. Terms & Condition with Related Party

i) The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more favourable than those available, or those which
might reasonably be expected to be available, in respect of similar transactions with non-key management personnel related entities on an arm’s length basis.

ii) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured
and partialy interest free except loan taken and settlement occurs in cash as per the terms of the agreement.
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29 Fair Value Measurements #

A. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2025 % in Lakh
Fair Value
Level1- Level2- Level 3~
Particulars Cost# FVTPL* Amortised cost Total Quoted pricein  Significant Significant
active markets  observable  unobservable Total
inputs inputs
Investment 1,116.58 71,407.17 - 72,523.75 - 71,407.17 - 71,407.17
Trade receivables - - 3,021.76 3,021.76 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 111.87 111.87 - - - -
Other bank balance - - 639.59 639.59 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 1.63 1.63 - - - -
Total Financial assets 1,116.58 71,407.17 3,774.85 76,298.60 - 7140717 - 71,407.17
Borrowings - - 8,080.18 8,080.18 - 8,080.18 - 8,080.18
Trade payable - - 2411.27 241127 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 1734 17.34 - - - -
Total Financial liabilities - - 10,508.79 10,508.79 - 8,080.18 - 8,080.18
As at 31 March 2024 < in Lakh
Fair Value
N . Level1- Level 2- Level 3-
Particulars Costs# FVTPL* Amortised cost Total Quoted pricein  Significant Significant Total
active markets  observable  unobservable

Investment 1,116.58 72,802.62 - 73,919.20 - 72,802.62 - 72,802.62
Trade receivables - - 337.33 337.33 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 201.24 201.24 - - - -
Other bank balance - - 866.20 866.20 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 1.63 1.63 - - - -
Total Financial assets 1,116.58 72,802.62 140640 75,325.60 - 7280262 - 72,802.62.
Borrowings - - 14,888.93 14,888.93 - 14,888.93 - 14,888.93
Trade payable - - 29.95 29.95 - - - -
Othis finanrial Baliilities “ - 902 902 - - - -
Total Financial liabilities - - 14,928.70 14,928.70 - 14,888.93 - 14,888.93

#Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27.
# Considering that there is no item of fair value through other comprehensive income, the same is not disclosed.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 category above has been determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

There have been no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the years.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value:

o Inputs included in Level 1 of Fair Value Hierarchy are based on prices quoted in stock exchange and/or NAV declared by the Funds.

e Inputs included in Level 2 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued based on inputs from banks and other recognised institutions.

o Inputs included in Level 3 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued using acceptable valuation techniques such as Net Asset Value and/or Discounted Cash Flow
Method.

Note: All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy described as above, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

30 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of cash and cash
equivalents and other receivables.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customner contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits with banks. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties.

A, Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the company’s income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments.

. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is
exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits with banks. The company’s exposure and credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties.

©

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Other financial assets
This comprises mainly of deposits with banks . Credit risk arising from these construction assets is limited.

C. Currency risk
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees ("Rs."). The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

D. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is
exposed to interest rate risk resulling from fluctuations in interest rates. Company's borrowing includes loan taken loan from banks or financial institution &
unsecured loan from Parent Company. Sunmimary of financial assets and financial liabilities has been provided below:

E. Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest - bearing financial instrument as reported to management is as follows:
< in Lakh
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable-rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

1.63 1.63

= 8,080.18 14,888.93
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Interest rate sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interest rates. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of
floating rate financial instruments to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate
across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as
at that date. The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

< it Lakht
Sensitivity analysis Impact on Impact on profit
profit before before tax

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest rate

- increase by 100 basis points (68.09) 148.89
- decrease by 100 basis points 68.09 (148.89)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company
invest in liquid mutual funds to meet the immediate obligations.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted.

as at 31 March 2025 Carrying Contractual cash flows
Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5
amount
year years
Borrowings (incl. current maturities) # 8,080.18 8,080.18 1,802.01 6,278.17 -
Trade pavables 2,414.52 2,414.52 2,/414.52 - -
Other current financial liabilities 17.34 17.34 17.34 - -
Total 10,512.04 10,512.04 4,233.87 6,278.17 -
as at 31 March 2024 N Contractual cash flows
Carrying Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5
amount year years
Borrowings (incl. current maturities) # 14,888.93 14,888.93 2,364.04 12,524.89 -
Trade payables 29.95 29.95 29.95 - -
Other current financial liabilities 9.82 9.82 9.82 - -
Total 14,928.70 14,928.70 2,403.81 12,524.89 N

# Borrowing includes unamortised transaction cost paid to lenders on upfront basis and interest accrued.
Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes paid-up equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company, The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong capital hase so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, to equity share holders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowing during the year. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is net debt divided by
total equity. The Company includes within net deht, interest bearing loans and horrowings, less cash and short-term deposits.

¥ fut Lakh
3iMarch 2025 31 March 2024
Rin Lakhs % in Lakhs
Total borrowings 8,080.18 14,888.93
Less: cash and cash equivalents 111.87 201.24
Adjusted net debt 7,968.31 14,687.69
Equity share capital 1.00 1.00
Instruments entirely equity in nature 940945 9,40945
Other equity 10,159.13 5,647.73
Total equity 19,569.58 15,058.18
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 041 0.98
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
Ratio 31March 2025 31 March 2024 % change Reason for
change

Current Ratio (in times) 0.07 0.03 136.75% Increase in
{Current assets/ Currenl liabilities) current liability
Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 2.80 397 -29.40% Increase in
( Total Debt / Total Equity ) Unsecured
(Total Debt = Debt comprises of current borrowings( including current maturities of long term borrowing
borrowings), non current borrowings and interest accrued on borrowings.
Total Equity (net worth) = Equity share capital+Other equity + unsecured borrowing taken
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) 0.67 1643 -95.95% Repayment
{ (Earning before interest and tax and depreciation)/ (principal repayment of non-current borrowings secured
made during the period and finance costs) ) borrowing
Return on equity ratio (%) 23.05% 33.14% -3043% Decrease in profit
(Profit for the period or year / Networth)
{Net Worth: Equily share capital+Other equity + unsecured borrowing taken and outstanding )
Inventory turnover ratio (in times) - - 0.00% NA
(Revenue from operation ( annualised) / Average Inventory)
Trade receivables turnover ratio (in times) 3.45 342 0.86% NA

{ Revenue from operalion (annualised) / Average account receivable)
{Average account receivable = Average trade receivables )

5.92 -32.14% Decrease in
current
outstanding

Trade payables turnover ratio {in times)
( Purchases made during the year (annualised) / Average account payable}




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2025

8 Net capital turnover ratio (in times) 0.12) 0.02) 549.90% Increase in
{ Revenue from operation ( annualised) / working capital) revenue from
(Working capital = Current assels - Current liabilities) operation

9 Net profit ratio (%o} 77.91% 580.05% -86.57% Decrease profit
{(Profit/ (loss) for the period/Revenue from operations) on investment by

FVTPL

10 Return on capital employed (%) 25.67% 23.47% 9.38% Increase in

{Profil before intrest and taxes for the period or year / Capital employed) current liabilities

{Capital employed = Tola] assels - Current liabilities)

1 Return on Investment (%) 8.95% 41.26% -78.30% Decrease profit
(Income d from i / Costof i ) on investment by
FVTPL

33 Explanation of transition fo Ind AS

@

Last year was the Company's first standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had
prepared these financial statements in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant
provisions of the Act ('Previous GAAP').

The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing these dalone financial for the year ended 31 March 2024 including the
comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the opening Ind AS balance sheet on the date of transition i.e. 1 April 2023.

In preparing its Ind AS balance sheet as at 1 April 2023 and in presenting the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has adjusted
amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the
Company in restating its financial statements prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP and how the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the
Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

Optional exemptions availed
1 Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

As per Ind AS 101 an entity may clect to:
measure an item of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date

(ii) use a Previous GAAP revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment at or before the date of transition as deemed cost at the date of the revaluation,

(1) usc carrying values of property, plant and

provided the revaluation was, at the date of the revaluation, broadlv comparable to:

« fair vatue;

- or cost or depreciated cost under Ind AS adjusted to reflect, for example, changes in a general or specific price index.
The elections under (i) and (i) above are also available for intangible assets that meets the recognition criteria in Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets, (including reliable
measurement of original cost); and criteria in Ind AS 38 for revaluation (including the existence of an active market).
assets and i ies as on the dale of transition to Ind AS (which are measured in accordance with Previous
GAAP and after making adj) relating to d issioning liabilities prescribed undu Ind AS 101) if there has been no change in its functional currency on the date of transition.

As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under Previous GAAP for all the items of property, plant and equipment
as its deemed cost. The same election has been made in respect of intangible assets also.

Mandatory exceptions

Estimates

As per Ind AS 101, an entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS at the end of the comparative period presented in the entity’s last years was first
standalonc Ind AS financial statements, as the case may be, should be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with the Previous GAAP unless there is objective
cvidence that those estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any differences in accounting policies.

As per Ind AS 101, where application of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required under Previous GAAP, those estimates should be made to reflect
conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet) or at the end of the comparative period (for presenting comparative information as per Ind

Tlie Company's estismaltes under Lind AS aie consisien with (e above regul . Key ésil § inp of the dalone flnanclal that were not requlred
under the Previous GAAP are listed below:

Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL and/ or FVOCL

Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model.

Determination of the discounted valuc for financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

2 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
As per Ind AS 101, an entity should apply the dcrcoogmuon requlrcmn.nls in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively for {ransactions occurring on or afler the date of transition
to Ind AS. However, an entity may apply the d pectively from a date chosen by it if the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financiat asscts and
financial liabilities derccognised as a result of past transacllons was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the derecognition principles of Ind AS 109 prospectively.

3 Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity fo assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of lransluon Further, the standard permits
measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of ition if retrospective ion is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial asscts based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of the financial assets
accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

There are no adjustments in cquity and other comprehensive income as per previous GAAP and IND AS as at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022

Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022

% in Lakh
Particulars 31March 2023 1 April 2022
Equity under previous GAAP 659.28 388.93
Adjustments : - -
Equity under Ind AS 659.28 388.93

= i
s




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

34  Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 in Lakhs
A. Disaggregated revenue information ’ Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
i) Type of service rendered

Sale of services 5,790.24 860.17

Total 5,790.24 860.17
ii) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography

India 5,790.24 860.17

Total 5,790.24 860.17
iii) Timing of Revenue recognition

Revenue from goods and services transferred to customers over time 5,790.24 860.17

Total 5,790.24 860.17

B. Contract balances:
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers.
< in Lakhs

. The amount of revenue recognized from

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Trade receivables
Opening balance 337.33
Closing balance - 3,021.76
The increase / decrease in trade receivables is mainly due to increase / decrease in sales.

165.95
337.33

% in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

- Performance obligations satisfied in previous years -
- Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year -

. Performance abligation

i) Sales of Services:

The performance obligation is satisficd over time a3 the agscts is under control of customer and they simultancously receives and consumes the benefits provided by

the Company. The Company received progressive payment toward provision of services.

Reconciliation of the amount for revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price:

¥ in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustments

Claims

Variable consideration - performance bonus
Revenue from contract with customers

35  Earnings per share

5,790.24

860.17

5,790.24

860.17

% in Lakhs

Particulars Ref Note No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Face value per equity share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
(a)  Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders after preference share dividend 3,561.40 4,989.45
(b)  Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
(¢) Equity shares issued during the year - -
(d) Number of equity shares at the end of the year 10,000 10,000
()  Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS 10,000 10,000
(ff  Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS 10,000 10,000
Earnings Per Share (in Rs.):

- Basic earning per share (a/e) 35,613.98 49,894.48

- Diluted earning per share (a/f) 35,613.98 49,894.48

Note:

Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of equity shares issued
during the year multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are outstanding as a proportion

of total number of days during the year.
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Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

36  Segment reporting

Basis for segmentation

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting",The Company is engaged in providing Testing and Analysis services related to road
construction activities, along with civil work (Operations & Maintenance). Additionally, the Company is also a sponsor of a Trust i.e. Indus Infra Trust (formerly
known as Bharat Highways InvIT), and earns returns on its sponsorship investments. The Director of the Company allocate the resources and assess the performance
of the Company, thus he is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors the operating results of the business as a single segment, hence no
separate segment needs to be disclosed.

Information about geographical areas
As the Company operates in India only, hence no separate geographical segment is disclosed.

Information about major customers

Revenue of Rs 4268.79 lakhs are derived from six customer which amounts to 10% or more of the Company’s revenue.
< in Lakhs

37  Contingent liabilities and commitments As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

A. Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

(i) Indirect tax matters

(if) Direct tax matters

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees :

Guarantees given to third parties

Total -
B. Commitments

(a) Other Commitments -

38  Other Statutory Information
®
The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
(i)  The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(iii) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(iv)  The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, inctuding foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(v} The Company have not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
() provide any guarantee, secority or the Jike on hehalf of the Ttimate Beneficiaries,
(vi)
The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
(vil) The Company do not have any immovable property so requirements related to disclosure of "title deed not being held in the name of the company"” is not

applicable to the Company.

(viii) The Company is not required to file quarterly returns/statements with the banks and financial institutions.

(ix) During the financial year, the Company's NABL accreditation was withdrawn by the National Accreditation Board for Testing and Calibration Laboratories
(NABL) pursuant to a complaint received. The Company intends to reapply for accreditation after the applicable cooling-off period. During the currency of the
above intervening period, there is no impact on the ongoing business operations and cash flows of the Company.

39  Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified whenever necessary to confirm this year's classification.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JLN US AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Reg. No. 101543W
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AADHARSHILA INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Aadharshila Infratech
Private Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its associate “Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways
Private Limited” for the year ended 31 March 2025 which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, notes to the consolidated financial statements and
a summary of the material accounting policy and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the
Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Holding
Company and its associate, as at 31 March 2025, and their consolidated profit (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement section of our report. We are
independent of the Holding Company and its associate, in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the consolidated Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other
information. The other information included in the Holding Company’s Annual report bul does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available to us and, in doing so,
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AADHARSHILA INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Independent Auditors’ Report on consolidated financial statements (Continued)

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information as and when made available to us and if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
those charged with governance and take appropriate action, if required.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding
Company’s Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Holding Company and its
associate in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
associate are also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information
considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated financial statements. Further, in
terms of the provisions of the Act the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Holding Company, and its associate company covered under the Act are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Holding Company and its associate company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
These Consolidated financial statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
Holding company and its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Holding
Company and of its associates company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Holding Company and its associate
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Holding company and its associate company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act will always detect a material misstatement,
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error, and are considered material if,
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Independent Auditors’ Report on consolidated financial statements (Continued)

individually, or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional- scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and
its associate has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Holding company and its associate, to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Holding company and
its associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statement represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the
entitles within the Holding Company and its associate, to express an opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and
performance of the audit of financial information of holding and associate included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements, of which we are the independent auditors. Since such
entities have been audited by us, there are no other auditors involved. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Pursuant to paragraph 3(xxi} of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”), we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the CARO
report pertaining to the Standalone Financial Statements of the Holding Company, which have
been considered in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements. In respect of
the associate company, whose financial statements have also been audited by us, we report that
there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the CARO report issued for such entity, which
has been considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The details of the associate are
as follows:

;1(') Name of the Company CIN Relationship l(\lll;nuse
1 | Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways | ;4 5309p12017pTC067184 | Associate vii(b)
Private Limited

As required by Section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on our audit of the
consolidated financial statements and the standalone financial statements of the Holding
Company and its associate, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (Including
the other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards}) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
company and its associate as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors
of the respective company, none of the directors of the Holding company and its associate
is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act;

(f) We are enclosing herewith a report in Annexure [ on the adequacy of internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls for the Holding
Company and its associate.
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Holding Company and its associate to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and as
mentioned in the “Other Matters” paragraph:

i) There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial
position of the Group and its associate.

ii) The Group and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iif) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its associate company

iv) (A) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its associate have
represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company and its associate to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shali,
directly or indirectly, lend or investin other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company and its associate (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(B) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its associate have
represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company and its associate from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company and its associate shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(C) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that causes us to
believe that the representations under sub-clauses (A) and (B) above contain any
material misstatement.

v} As stated in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements:
(a) No interim dividend was declared and paid by the Holding Company during the year
or up to the date of this report.
(b) No dividend was declared or paid in respect of the previous financial year.
(c) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company have proposed a final dividend for
the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which is subject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is
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in accordance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, as
applicable.

vi} Based on our examination, which included test checks and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Holding Company has maintained its books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.
During the course of our audit for the year ended March 31, 2025, and as per the
information and explanations provided to us, the audit trail feature was enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions, and the audit logs have been
preserved by the Company in accordance with the statutory requirements. We did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with during the
course of our audit

Other Matters

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Group’s share of net profit after tax of Rs.
105.97 lakh and share of total comprehensive income of Rs. 105.97 lakh for the year ended
March 31, 2025, in respect of one associate whose financial statements have been audited by
us. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the associate, and our report under sub-sections (3} and
(11} of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the associate, is based on our audit of the
respective financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the company for the previous year ended March 31,
2024 were audited by the predecessor audit firm and the auditor has expressed unmodified
opinion on such financial statements.

We draw attention to Note 39(ix) of the financial statements, which describes that the NABL
accreditation of the Company was withdrawn during the year pursuant to a complaint received.
As stated in the said note, the Company intends to reapply for the accreditation after the
applicable cooling-off period. The management represents that there is no impact on the
ongoing business operations and cash flows of the Company during this intervening period.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101543W

CA MahesH Menaria
Partner
M No. 400828

UDIN: 25400828BMIDAD3026

Udaipur, May 28, 2025
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Annexure |

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Aadharshila Infratech
Private Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its associate company as at and for the year ended
31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its associate company, which are companies
covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal
Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its associate company, which
are companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference
to Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its associate company, as
aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial
statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and cvaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its associate companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its associate company, which are companies covered
under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial
statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its associate considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 543W

W

CA Mahesh Menaria
Partner

M No. 400828
UDIN: 25400828BMIDAD3026

Udaipur, May 28, 2025
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General Information

The consolidated financial statements comprise of financial statements of Aadharshila Infratech Private
Limited (‘the Holding Company’ or "the Company” or ‘AIPL") and its associate for the year ended March 31,
2025. The Company is a Private limited company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at Plot
No. 8 Main Road, Opposite CNG Petrol Pump, Goverdhan Vilas Udaipur-313001 Rajasthan, India. The
Company has been incorporated on 30 June 2010 under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1956.

Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited is an ISO-certified company specializing in highway building materials
testing, including chemical, mechanical, and non-destructive testing (NDT). The company operates a modern
laboratory at its registered office and offers comprehensive services in QC/QA, R&D, field investigations,
and design of pavements and airport runways.

With a track record of 500+ infrastructure projects across India, AIPL also provides Operations & Maintenance
(O&M) services, including Micro-surfacing of bituminous pavements using advanced pavement preservation
techniques.

In addition, AIPL is a Sponsor of Indus Infra Trust (formerly Bharat Highways InvIT) and earns returns on
its sponsorship investment, adding strategic value to its infrastructure portfolio.

As these are the Company’s second consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been
applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note 33.

The Consolidated Financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board
of directors on May 28, 2025.

Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation and consolidation:

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are comprise of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
for the year then ended and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory notes
(collectively, the ‘Consolidated financial statements’) have heen prepared in accordance with applicable
provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notificd under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, {the
‘Act’) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the consolidated financial statements. The Group has prepared the
financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
asscts and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:
e financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%). All amounts have been rounded-
off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. Certain amounts that are required to be disclosed and
do not appear due to rounding-off are expressed as 0.00. The consolidated f1nanc1aL§tatements provide
comparative information in respecg.of the prevmus period. R4
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Basis of consolidation:

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its associate as
at March 31, 2025. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has; (i) Power over the investee
(i.e. existing rights that give it the current liability to direct the relevant activities of investee): (ii) Exposure,
or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and (iii) The ability to use its power over
the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption
and when the Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
(i) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee: (ii) rights arising from other
contractual arrangements: (iii) the Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights, other vote holders or
other parties: (iv) the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the
holdings of the other voting rights holders: (v) any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders” meetings.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances. The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of
consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March.

Interest in associates is accounted using equity method. The consolidated financial statements include the
Group's share of profit or loss and OCI of associates until the date on which cessation of significant influence
on associates.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flow relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The following entities are considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements as well as the Company’s
voting power in entities listed below:

Country of % of holding as on

Name of the company/entity incorporati 31 March 31 March
on 2025 2024
1. Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited # India 21.00 21.00

~ Became associate during the financial year 2023-24

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
The following are the material accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing its consolidated
financial statements:

a. Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. An
asset is current when it is:
e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading; s
o  Expected to be realised withintwelve months after the reporting period{;/;ér




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

e  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
» Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
b. Foreign currency transaction

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented using Indian Rupee (%), which is also the
functional currency i.e. currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Group at the
Spot rates on the date of the transaction or at an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Exchange differences are recognized in
profit or loss.

¢. Financial instruments

i Initial recognition

Financial instruments i.e. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which Group has applied the practical expedient, Group initially measuzres a financial instrument at its
fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments
(other than financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial instruments. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
instruments assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

ii Financial Assets - Subsequent measurement

The Group are subsequently measured all financial assets at amortized cost (amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the

EIR) using effective interest method except for financial assets carried at f’élr value-through Profit and Loss
/ //>\ux /:/;\%\
e N\
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(FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income respectively. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - Equity Instrument:

The Group has elected to classify its equity investments at fair value through OCI. Financial assets at FVOCI
are initially recognized at transaction value (fair value) and subsequently measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in OCI. Gains and losses
on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as other income in the
statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in OCI. Such instruments are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL):

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. Financial assets at are initially recognized at
transaction value (fair value) and subsequently measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

iii Financial Assets - Derecognition

The Group is derecognized financial asset primarily when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through’
arrangement; and either a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or b)
the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

iv Financial Assets - Impairment

At each date of balance sheet, The Group assesses whether a financial asset carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. The Group applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment losses. The Group follow the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance on all
trade receivable and/ or contract assets. The application of the simplified approach does not require the Group
to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment allowance based on lifetime. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses
or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets and recognized in the statement of profit and losses under the head of “Other Expenses”.
v Financial liabilities - Classification

Financial liabilities issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.
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vi Financial liabilities - Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR), except
for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
through the EIR amortisation process. Amortisation arising on unwinding of the financial liabilities as per EIR
is included as a part of Finance Costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities recognised at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss.

vii Financial liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

viii Reclassification

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets, such as equity instruments designated at FVTPL
or FVOCI and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made
only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.

ix Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

d. Fair values measurement

The Group measurement financial instrument, such as derivative, investment and mutyal fund at fair values
at each balance sheet date.

The Group's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as fair value of total assets, unquoted tinancial assets measured at fair value and for non-recurring fair
value measurement such as asset under the scheme of business undertaking.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

The Group has an established control framework with respect of fair values. This includes a financial reporting
team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements and reports directly
to the Chief Financial Officer.

The financial reporting team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third party information, such as pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the financial reporting
team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations
meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should
be classified.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

e. Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
.to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

Investments in Associates are accounted for using the equity method. The investment is initially recognised at
cost less impairment if any, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the acquisition date. Where an indication of impairment exists, the
Group tests these investments for impairment in accordance with the policy applicable to ‘Impairment of non-
financial assets” and the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and carrying
amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

f. Property, plunt and equipment and Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of PPE comprises its purchase
price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates
and any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use. The cost
of a self-constructed item of PPE comprises the cost of materials and direct labour and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use.

When significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of PPE. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Items such as spare parts and servicing equipment are recognised as PPE if they meet the definition of PPE
and are expected to be used for more than one year. All other items of spares and servicing equipments are
classified as item of Inventories.

An item of PPE is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an-item of property,
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plant and equipments is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation on PPE is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as prescribed under
Schedule II of the Act except below property plant and equipment which is based on technical evaluation done
by the management and they believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Asset Management estimate
of useful life
Buildings other than factory buildings 3 years
Plant and equipment 3-15 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Fixtures and fittings 10 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates
of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / upto the date on which asset
is ready for use / disposed off.

Capital work in progress

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on balance sheet date is shown as capital work in progress. Capital
work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any Advances given towards
acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as other
non-current assets

8. Intangible assets

Intangible assets including those acquired by the Group are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortization

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation and amortisation in
consolidated financial statement.

The estimated useful lives are as follows :
- Software 3 to 5 years

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted if appropriate.

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an intangible asset is
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset
and is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

h. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an
individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to disposal and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators. The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment loss are reduce from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU (or group of CGUSs).

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Group reviews at each
reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a
reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

i,  Investment Property

Investment Property is measured initially at cost including related transaction costs. Such cost comprises the
purchase price and borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any. All day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

An Investment property is de-recognised either when it has been disposed of or when it has been permanently
withdrawn trom use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel is recognised in consolidaled stalement of profit
or loss in the period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use.

j. Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

i.  Group as a lessee
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The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets.

Lease term which is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Group uses judgement in assessing the
lease term (including anticipated renewals/termination options).

The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

Right of use of Assets

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase
option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
re measurements of the lease liability.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined. After the commencement date,
lease liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payment made.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the exercise
price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional
renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Modifications to a lease
agreement beyond the original terms and conditions are generally accounted for as a re-measurement of the
lease liability with a corresponding adjustment to the ROU asset. Any gain or loss on modification is
recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. However, the modifications that increase the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more undetlying assets at a price commensurate with the stand-alone selling
price arc accounted for as a separate new lease. In case of lease moditications, discounting rates used for
measurement of lease liability and ROU assets is also suitably adjusted.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of all the
assets that have a lease term of twelve months or less with no purchase option and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ii. Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an opcrating Ioasc arc added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on t}} rental income.
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k. Revenue from contracts with customer
The accounting policies for the specific revenue streams of the Group as summarised below:

i Construction contracts

Revenue, where the performance obligation of long-term construction contract is satisfied over time since the
Group creates an assets that the customer controls and it has an enforceable right to payment (i.e. right to
invoice) for performance completed to date, is recognised in proportion to the stage of completion of the
contract. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed and /or on
completion of physical proportion of the contract work. In case of project is initial stage then contract revenue
is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the accounting periods in which
the work to which they relate is performed.

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work and
claims payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably.
The Group recognises bonus/ incentive revenue on early completion of the project upon acceptance of the
corresponding claim by the Customer.

In case of construction contracts payment is generally due upon completion of milestone as per terms of
contract. In certain contracts, short-term advances are received before the performance obligation is satisfied.
Retention money receivable from’ customers does not contain any significant financing élement, these are
retained for satisfactory performance of contract.

The Group recognises a provision for onerous contract when the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received in accordance with Ind AS 37. Such expected
loss on a contract is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii Service contract

Service contracts (including operation and maintenance contracts and job work contracts) in which the Group
has the right to consideration from the customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the
customer of the Group’s performance completed to date, revenue is recognized when services are performed
and contractually billable.

iii Income from Service Concession Arrangement (Finance Income) ,
The Group recognizes the considerations given by the grantor i.e. National Highway Authority of India
(NHAI') in accordance with the Appendix D to ind AS 115 - Service Concession Arrangements under
financial assets mode. Under financial assets mode, the Group.has an unconditional contractual right to receive
cash i.e. fixed annuity after concession period including interest thereon, The finance Income calculated on the
basis of the effective interest rate in accordance with the Ind AS 109. The finance Income is recognized under
other operating income.

iv Variable consideration
The nature of the Group’s contracts gives rise to several types of variable consideration, including claims,
bonus, unpriced change orders, award and incentive fees, change in law, liquidated damages and penalties. .
The Group estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using the expected
value (ie., the sum of a probability-weighted amount) or the most likely amount method, whichever is
expected to better predict the amount. =

; . h
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Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The Group’s claim for extra work, incentives and escalation in rates relating to execution of contracts are
recognized as revenue in the year in which said claims are finally accepted by the clients. Claims under
arbitration/ disputes are accounted as income based on final award. Expenses on arbitration are accounted as
incurred.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Group considers whether
the amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined that the estimates of variable
consideration are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current
economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short
time frame.

v Contract modifications

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the
services added to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the Consolidated selling price.
Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catchup basis, while those that are
distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at the
Consolidated selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced
at the Consolidated selling price.

vi Cost to fulfill the contract

The Group recognises asset from the cost incurred to fulfill the contract such as camp set up and mobilisation
costs which is amortises it over the contract-tenure on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates.

vii Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If
the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial instrument
section.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

viii Income from scrap sales and others
Income from scrap sales and other ancﬂlary sales is recognised when the control over the goods is transferred
to the customers.

ix Dividend income, interest income and insurance claim
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Group's right to receive payment is
established.

i
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method in accordance Ind AS ]7 //\ b
(tf)!
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Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/expected to be admitted and to the extent
that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.

L. Service concession arrangement

The Group constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade service) used to provide to public
service and operates and maintains that infrastructure (operation service) for a specified period of time. This
arrangement may include infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its
entire useful life.

The Group recognizes the considerations given by the grantor i.e. National Highway Authority of India
('NHAT') in accordance with Appendix D to Ind AS 115 - ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’. The
Group recognizes contract assets under Ind AS 115 during the construction period. Upon completion of assets,
the Group classifies the contract asset as financial assets to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual
right to receive cash in accordance with Ind AS 109. Ind AS 109 requires a financial asset to be measured at its
fair value and any difference between the initial measurement of the financial asset in accordance with Ind AS
109 and the contract asset recognised under Ind AS 115 to be presented as an expense. Such financial assets
subsequently measure at amortized cost using effective interest method.

m. Employee benefits

i Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid,
if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan in the form of provident fund and superannuation fund are a post-employment
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions and the Group has no legal or constructive
obligation other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and superannuation fund. Obligations
for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss
in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

iii Accumulated Leave

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group
recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service.

n. Taxes

Current income tax

Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax.

Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any,
related to income taxes. It is measured
reporting date.




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore,
in case of a history of recent losses, the Group recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will
be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/
no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Goods and service tax taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and service taxes paid, except: when the tax
incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the
tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
or when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the balance sheet.

0. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they are incurred. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantia};ly all the activities necessary to

repare-the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete.
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Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

p. Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are measure based on management’s estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date and are discounted the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed.

Contingencies
Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that

may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

q. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

t.  Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of Group. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments of Group.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire property and equipment and intangible assels.

S.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheel comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Net of outstanding bank overdrafls if any, as they are
considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

t.  Exception item

Exceptional items are generally non-recurring items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary
activities, which are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance
of the Group for the year. '

2.3 Significant accountjng.j ggements, estimates and assumption
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the Consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.

The following are the key judgement, estimation and assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition from construction contracts involves significant degree of judgements and estimation
such as identification of contractual obligations, measurement and recognition of contract assets,
determination of variable consideration, change of scope and determination of onerous contract which include
estimation of contract costs. The Group reassesses these estimates on periodic basis and makes

appropriate revisions accordingly.

Service Concession arrangement:

The Group recognizes the considerations given by the grantor i.e. National Highway Authority of India
(‘'NHAYT') in accordance with Appendix D to Ind AS 115 - ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’. The
Group recognizes contract assets under Ind AS 115 during the construction period. Upon completion of assets,
the Group classifies the contract asset as financial assets to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual
right to receive cash in accordance with Ind AS 109. Ind AS 109 requires a financial asset to be measured at its
fair value and any difference between the initial measurement of the financial asset in accordance with Ind AS
109 and subsequently measure at amortized cost using el{ective interest method.

To determine effective interest rate, there are significant judgement and estimates involve annuity and interest
on annuity inflows, estimations on cost to maintain the assct and other operational efficiencies. These inputs
are based on circumstances existing and management judgement / assumption on the future expectations
based on current situations. Judgements include management view on expected earnings in future years,
changes in interest rates, cost inflation, government policy changes, etc. These input assumptions could affect
the estimation and accordingly these assumptions are reviewed periodically.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Group uses market observable data
to the extent available. Where such Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group establishes appropriate
valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flows (DCF) model and inputs to the model. The inputs
" to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors coyld affe
of financial instruments. / A
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets (including associates)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows (consisting of
annuity, Interest rate, discount rate, future operating income and cost as well as finance cost) are derived from
the Business Projections and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. Further, the management has not
considered any claim or awards which receivable from various authorities in the impairment assessment of
subsidiaries and associates.

Impairment of financial assets (including Trade Receivables and contract assets)

Impairment testing for financial assets (other than trade receivables and contract assets) is done at least once
annually and upon occurrence of an indication of impairment. The recoverable amount of the individual
financial assets is determined based on value-in-use calculations which required use of assumption. These
assumptions are about risk of default and expected credit loss. The Group makes judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
condition and forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting year of counter party's credit worthiness.

Allowances for doubtful trade receivables and contract assets represent the estimate of losses that could arise
due to inability of the customer to make payments when due. These estimates are based on the Group’s past
history, performance issues, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

Determination of the estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and the assessment as to which
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful life of these assets is based on the life prescribed in Schedule
IT to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on technical estimates, taking into account the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets, nature of the asset, estimated usage, expected residual values and operating
conditions of the asset. Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable at each reporting
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. The depreciation for future periods is revised if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-
term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results
and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to
tax income and expense already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates.

Provisions and Contingencies

The Group has ongoing litigation with various regulatory authorities. Where an outflow of funds is believed
to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the disputes can be made based on management's
assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for
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3. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
3.1. New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments adopted by the Group

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent
except for amendments to the existing Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2023. The Group applied for the first-time these amendments.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments had no impact on the Group’s Consolidated
financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing
the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant” accounting policies with a requirement to disclose
their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments have had an impact on the Group’s
disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognilion or presentation of any items in
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS 101,
Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 34.

3.2. Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.




Aardharshila Infratech Private Limited
CIN U45200R]2010PTC066826

Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2025

Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Plant, Property and Equipment 4 1,293.35 1,074.44
(b) Other intangible assets 4 0.05 0.07
(¢) Financial assets
(i) Investment 6 72,561.4% 73,850.97
(ii) Other financial assets 5 1.63 1.63
(d) Other non-current assets 7 0.65 0.65
(e) Taxassets 8 830.14 72.49
Total Non-Current Assets 74,687.31 75,000.25
Current assefs
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 9 3,021.76 337.33
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 111.87 201.24
(iii) Other bank balances 11 639.59 866.20
(b) Other current assets 7 1019 70.15
Total Current Assets 3,783.41 1,474.92
Total assets 78,470.72 76,475.17
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 1.00 1.00
(b) instruments entirely equity in nature 13 9,408.45 9,408.45
(¢} Other Equity 14 10,196.86 5,579.50
Total Equity 19,606.31 14,988.95
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 6,278.17 12,524.89
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 27 1,378.09 1,699.40
Total Non-Current Liabilities 7,656.26 14,224.30
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 48,530.83 47,207.67
(ii) Trade payables - total outstanding dues of
(a) micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 3.25 -
(b) creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 2411.27 29.95
(c) other Financial Liabilities 18 17.34 9.82
(b) Other current liabilities 19 245.46 14.49
(c) Current tax liabilities (net) - -
Total Currenl Liabilities 51,208.15 17,261.93
Total Liabilities 58,864.41 61,486.22
Total equity and Habilities 78,470.72 76,475.17
Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2-3
Notes to financial statements 4-40

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
CIN U45200R]2010PTC066826

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2025

Tin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 20 5,790.24 860.17
Other income 21 7,897.28 6,523.33
Total income 13,687.52 7,383.50
Expenses
Civil Cost 22 4,904.36 149.68
Employee benefits expense 23 273.63 184.98
Finance costs 24 2,347.61 173.74
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 25 152.80 113.50
Other expenses 26 1,368.05 63.28
Total expenses 9,046.45 685.18
Profit before tax and share of profit/(loss) of associates 4,641.07 6,698.32
Profit from associates accounted using the equity method 105.97 (68.23)
Profit before tax 4,747.03 6,630.09
Tax expense:
Current tax 27 472.55 44.25
Adjustment of income tax related to earlier periods 27 (21.57) -
Deferred tax charge 27 (321.31) 1,664.62
Total tax expenses 129.67 1,708.87
Profit for the year 4,617.37 4,921.22
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) - -
Income tax relating to above - .
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,617.37 4,921.22
Earnings per share
(Nominal value of share Rs.10 each)
Basic {Rs.) 37 36,673.66 49,212.18
Diluted (Rs.) 37 36,673.66 49,212.18
Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2-3
Notes on financial statements 4-40

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements
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Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
CIN U45200R]2010PTC066826
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2025

Tin Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 4,641.07 6,698.32
Adjustments for:
Interest income (73.58) (166.71)
Fair value gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL 1,269.20 (6,352.62)
Finance costs 2,347.61 173.74
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 152.80 113.50
Operating Profit before working capital changes 8,337.10 466.23
Working capital adjustments :
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (2,684.43) (171.38)
Increase in trade payables 2,384.57 9.34
Decrease / (Increase) in other financial and non financial assets 59.96 7.89
Increase in financial and non-financial liabilities 238.49 410
Cash generated from operating activities 8,335.69 316.18
Income tax paid (net, of refunds) (1,208.63) (132.09)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 7127.06 184.09
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 73.58 166.71
(Investments) in bank deposits (net) 226.61 {866.20)
(Investment) in units of Bharat highways invIT 126.26 66,450.00)
(Investment) in associate company - (1,116.58)
(Purchase) of Plant & Equipments (371.67) " {326.39)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (B) 54.78 (68,592.46)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid {2,347.61) {173.74)
Proceeds from preference shares - 9,408.45
{Repayment) of non-current borrowings - -
Proceeds from non-current borrowings {4,923.56) 59,122.23
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C) (7,2711.17) 68,356.94
Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (89.37) (51.43)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 201.24 . 252.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 111.87 201.24
Notes:
1 Cash and cash equivalents comprises of (refer note 10)
<in Lakhs
Parficulars Ref Note No. Asat As at
Balances with banks:
- Current accounts 111.87 201.24
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 111.87 201.24
2 The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".
3. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities in terms of Ind AS 7: Zin Lakhs
As at Net cash flow Others Asat
1 April 2024 31 March 2025
Non-current borrowings 59,732.56 {7,271.17) 2,347.61 54,809.00
Total 59,732.56 (7,271.17) 2,347.61 54,809.00
As at Net cash flow Others As at
1 April 2023 31 March 2024
Total 610.33 58,948.49 173.74 59,732.56
4 Figures in brackets represent outflows.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2-3
Notes on financial statements 4-40 f
The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements é |
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Consoleidtaed Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital Zin Lakhs
Particulars Number of Amount
shares
Balance as at 31 March 2024 10,000 1.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 10,000 1.00

B. Instruments entirely equity in nature
Preference Share Capital

(a) 10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up

<in Lakhs

Particulars Number of Amount
shares
Balance as at 31 March 2024 95,000,000 9,500.00
Changes in Preference Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Changes in Preference share capital during the year - -
Add/Less:- Issue Expenses (refer note no. 13) - (91.55)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 95,000,000.00 9,408.45 i
C. Other Equity Zin Lakhs
. Retained Debenhfre Total
Particulars . redemption .
Earnings Other equity
reserve
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023 658.28 - 658.28
Profit for the year
Items of other comprehensive income for the year , net of taxes 4,921.22 - 4,921.22
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (1,500.00) 1,500.00 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4,079.50 1,500.00 5,579.50
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024 - - -
Profit for the year 4,617.37 - 4,617.37
Items of other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes - - -
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve 680.81 (680.81) -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 9,377.68 819.19 10,196.87

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies
Notes on financial statements

‘The notes referred above are an integral part of these hinancial statements

For JLN US AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg, No. 101543W
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Partner
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Director
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Company Secretary
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Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the lidated financial for the year ended March 31, 2025
4 Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets Zin Lakhs
N Other Intangible
Property, plant and equipment Totl’all‘:‘:va]:;rty, Assets Total Other
i N ible Asset:

Building Shed  Plant & Machine F‘;’)‘( :t;r:s& Office Equipments Computers Vehciles Equipments Software Intangible Assets
Cost (refer note 4.1)
As at 31 March 2023 1.95 840.76 6.24 241 12.53 97.54 961.43 0.19 0.19
Additions - 308.97 124 0.81 377 11.60 326.39 -
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 1.95 1,149.73 7.48 3.22 16.30 109.14 1,287.82 0.19 0.19
Additions 1.54 298.21 4.00 4.53 6.25 57.14 371.67 -
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2025 349 1,447.94 11.48 7.75 22.55 166.28 1,659.51 0.19 0.19
Accumulated depreciation / amortisation
As at 01 April 2022 - - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 0.66 71.02 0.67 0.52 7.58 19.47 99.92 0.08 0.08
Charge for the year 0.66 90.09 0.81 071 345 17.74 11346 0.04 0.04
On Disposals - - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 1.32 161.11 1.48 1.23 11.63 37.21 213.38 0.12 012
Charge for the year 084 122.05 122 175 3.84 23.08 152.78 0.02 0.02
On Disposals - - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2025 2.16 283.16 2.70 2.98 14.87 60.29 366.16 0.14 0.14
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2024 0.63 988.62 6.00 1.99 5.27 71.93 1,074.44 0.07 0.07
As at 31 March 2025 1.33 1,164.78 8.78 4.77 7.€8 105.99 1,293.35 0.05 0.05

Notes:

4.1 The Company has to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, plant and equipments and other intangibles as recognised in its previous GAAP (Indian accounting principle generally accepted in India as prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014), as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. April 1, 2022 as per cption permitted under Ind AS 101 for the first time adoption. Accordingly, the
accumulated depreciation and amortisation-as at the transition date that was eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the assets.




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Other Financial assets (Unsecured, Considered Good) Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Non Current
Security & Other Deposit 0.13 0.13
Others 1.50 1.50

1.63 1.63
Investments Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Non-current Investment
Unquoted
Investment in associate at cost

Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited (28,62,300 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) (refer note (a) below),

Quoted

Investment measured at tair value through protit and loss (FV11L)
Units of Indus InfraTrust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways Invit)
(6,64,50,000 units of Rs. 100 each) (refer note (b) below)and (Note no.29)
Total

1,154.32 1,048.35
1,154.32 1,048.35
71,407.17 72,802.62
71,407.17 72,802.62
72,561.49 73,850.97

Pursuant to board of directors approval on October 31, 2023 and share purchase agreement dated October 31, 2023 entered with G R Infraprojects Limited, the
Company has purchased 28,62,300 equity shares, equivelant to 21% stake of Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited for total considetation of Rs

1,116.58 lakhs.

The Company being sponsor of the Indus Infra Trust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT) ("InvIT") has subscribed to 6,64,50,000 units of the InvIT of
face value of Rs. 100 each, which is equivalent to 15% of the total Units of the InvIT on a post-Issue basis for a cash consideration of Rs. 66,450.00 lakhs, by the
company prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening Date (but after the announcement of the Price Band) in accordance with the terms of the Commitment Letter dated

Other assets (Unsecured, Considered Good)

Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current
Balance with government authoritics 0.65 0.65
0.65 0.65
Current
Advance to suppliers for goods and services 0.53 27.20
Prepaid expenses 6.90 5.69
Other Current Assets (Including Balance with Govt. Authorities)
GST input receivable - 35.65
GST TDS receivable 0.03 1.61
Others 2.73 -
10.19 70.15
10.84 70.80
Tax Assets Tin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current
Income tax assets (net) 830.14 72.49
§30.14 7249




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes

to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2025

Notes:-

Trade Receivables

¥in Lakhs

Particulars

Ref Note No.

As at

31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Current
Trade receivables
Less: Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

3,021.76

337.33

3,021.76

337.33

Break-up of Security details

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Movement in Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Balance as at begning of the year

Add; Allowance for the year

Less: Utilised during the year

Balance as at end of the year

Below is Trade receivables ageing schedule

3,021.76

337.33

3,021.76

337.33

Current

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

but
not due

Less than 6 month

6 months -

1year 1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

31 March 25
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good -

2,854.61

4211 1.93

0.20

12291

3,021.76

Total -

2,854.61

42,11 1.93

0.20

12291

3,021.76

31March 24
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good -

14748 25.16

337.33

Total .

147.48 25.16

337.33

a) Trade Receivables are non interest bearing.
b) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other

receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
c) Trade Receivables relating to related party .

&in Lakhs
As al As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other Trade receivable 372.80 280.23
Receivable from related parties 2,648.96 57.10
3,021.76 337.33
10 Cash and cash equivalents
Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance with banks
Cash on hand 3.76 3.76
Balance with banks
in Current Account 108.11 182.48
Deposits with bank having original maturity of less than three months - 15.00
111.87 201.24
11 Other Bank Balances % in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deposits with remaining matuzrity more than 12 months # 639.59 866.20
639.59 866.20
#Deposits lien with banks/ lenders against Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA). 639.59 866.20




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

12 Equity Share capital
Tin Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Authorised

10,000 Equity Shares {P.Y. 10,000) of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up
10,000 Equity Shares (P.Y. 10,000) of Rs.10 each

1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00

Reconciliation of equity share oufstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
At the commencement of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Add/Less:- movement during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

31 March 2024

Particulars 31 March 2025
Numbers % of total share
in class

Numbers % of total
share in class

Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held by

- Rahul Agarwal 3,185 31.85% 3,185 31.85%
- Mehul Agarwal 2,515 2515% 2515 25.15%
- Riya Agarwal 4,300 43.00% 4,300 43.00%

Particulars of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Promoter name No. of %of total No. of %eof total
Shares shares Shares shares
- Rahul Agarwal 3,185 31.85% 3,185 31.85%
- Mehul Agarwal 2,515 25.15% 2,515 25.15%
- Riya Agarwal 4,300 43.00% 4,300 43.00%

Terms & Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual
assets, The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of
hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equily capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or
other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all

preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

13 Insiruments entirely equity in nature
(a) 10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up %in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Aut
9,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each 9,500.00 9,500.00
9,500.00 9,500.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
9,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each 9,500.00 9,500,00
' (10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Optionally Convertible Redecmable Preference share of Rs, 10 cach fully paid-up )
Add/Less:- Issue Expenses (refler note below) (91.55) (91.55)
(Issue Expenses of Rs, 91.55 Lakh incurred in connection with issue of Preference Share have been reduced from the Capital
in accordance with As- 32 Financial instruments: Presentation)
9,408.45 9,408.45
Reconciliation of Preference share oufstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
At the commencement of the year 95,000,000 9,500.00 - -
Add/Less:- movement during the year - - 95,000,000 9,500.00
At the end of the year 95,000,000 9,500.00 95,000,000 9,500.00




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% Preference shares in the Company

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Numbers % of total share ~ Numbers % of total
in class share in class
- Rahul Agarwal 47,500,000 50% 47,500,000 50%
- Mehul Agarwal 47,500,000 50% 47,500,000 50%
Particulars of Shares held by promolers at the end of the year
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Promoter name No. of %of total No. of %of total
Shares shares Shares shares
- Rahul Agarwal 47,500,000 50% 47,500,000 50%
- Mehul Agarwal 47,500,000 50% 47,500,000 50%

Terms & Rights attached to preference shares:

(2).10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up

The company has issued 10% Non Cummulative, Non Participating, Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("NNNRPS") of face value of Rs. 10 each
Fully paid up for cash by Rahul Agarwal and Mehul Agarwal. The preference Shareholders shall carry a preferential right to dividend in priority to equity
shareholders. The Preference Shareholders shall not be entitled to participate in surplus funds on winding up of company, payment of dividend shall be non
cummulative. The holder of preference shares has right to vote is available only on resolution that directly affect the rights atttached to preference shareholders.
Preference shares shall be redeemable at par on the date falling immediately on expiry of 15 years from the date of allotment of preference shares.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date i.e. March 31, 2024, the members of the Company vide their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on April 30, 2024 have
approved variation in rights attached to these NNNRPS, and as per amended terms, the Company has option to convert the NNNRPS into Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each, between 10 years to 12 years from the date of allotment i.e. 10 to 12 years from October 31, 2023 making these NNNRPS to 10% Non Cummulative,
Non Participating, Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("NNORPS"). The conversion ratio of NNORPS into Equity Shares shall be determined
by the Board of Directors of the Company basis book value of Equity Share on immediately preceding financial year.

On May 28, 2025, the Board of directors of the Company approved a final dividend of ¥ 1.00 per Preference share and Rs. 30900.00 per Equity share for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM), which shall be paid after March

31, 2025.
14  Other equity
Tin Lakhs
Particulars Debenture
Retained .
Earnings redemption Total
reserve
Balance as at 31 March 2023 658.28 - 658.28
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023
Profit for the year 4,921.22 - 4,921.22
Items of other comprehensive income for the year , net of taxes
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve (1,500.00) 1,500.00 -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -
Balance as at 1 April 2024 4,079.50 1,500.00 5,579.50
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024
Profit for the year 4,617.%6 - 4,617.36
ltems ot other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve 680.81 (680.81) -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 9,377.67 819.19 10,196.86

1 Debenture redemption reserve ('DRR')
The opaty las issued edeeiable nun-converlible debentures and as per e Companies (Slare capital and Debentures) Kules, 2014 (as aimended) require the
company to create Debenture Redemption Reserve (‘DRR') out of profits of the company available for payment of dividend. DRR is required to be created for an
amount which is equal to 10% of the value of outstanding debentures. DRR is required to be created over the life of debentures and upon redemption of
debentures, DRR is required to be transferred to retained earning,




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Non current borrowings

) Zin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Debentures - unsecured
Listed Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures 8,259.08 15,114.04
Less:- Unamortised Borrowing Cost-NCD (178.90) (225.11)

8,080.18 14,888.93

8,080.18 14,888.93
Total 8,080.18 14,888.93
Non-Current portion of long term borrowings 6,278.17 12,524.89
Current maturities of long term borrowings 1,802.01 2,364.04

8,080.18 14,888.93

Notes:

Debt Covenants:
The Company has satisfied all the debts covenants prescribed in the terms of respective loan/debenture agreement as at reporting date. The company has

not defaulted in any loans/debenture pavable.

Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited has allotted 15000 no. of Rs. 1.0 Lakhs, each INR denominated, rated, listed, unsecufed, redeemable, non-
cumulative, taxable non-convertible debentures on February 26, 2024. Repayment in 20 Quarterly installment as defined in the repayment schedule
enclosed with term sheet, along with quarterly payments of interest rate of interest ranging from 7.95% to 9.66% p.a.

Current borrowings Tin Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loans from other Corporate
Unsecured inter corporate loans 2,071.63 1,993.63
Loans from others - Unsecured
Unsecured loan from relatives of Director 44,657.19 42,850.00
Current maturities of long term borrowings 1,802.01 2,364.04
Total 48,530.83 47,207.67

Terms of repayment of Inter-corporate Loans
The Company has availed unsecured loan from a NBEC Company at an interest rate of 6.50% per annum payable annually, this loan is repayable on

demand. The interest shall be payable on demand.

Unsecured loans received from relatives of the director are partialy interest free and repayment of the same shall be on demand as mutually agreed upon.




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

17  Trade payables
< in Lakles
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Total outstanding dues of

Micro and small enterprises (MSMED) 3.25 -
Creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2,411.27 29.95
2,414.52 29.95

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
&in Lakhs

Outstanding for the following periods

. from the due date of payment .
As at 31 Mar 2025 Unbilled "7 ian year 1-2 23 More than 3 years Total
years years
Due of micro and small enterprises (MSMED) - 3.25 - - - 325
Due of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,794.61 616.66 - - - 241127
Disputed dues of MSMED - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSMED - - - - - -
Total 1,794.61 619.91 - - - 2,414.52
Ouistanding for the following periods
N from the due date of payment
As at 31 Mar 2024 Unbilled  “7occiant year 1-2 23 More than 3 years Total
years years
Due of micro and small enterprises (MSMED) - - - - -
Due of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 158 28.37 - - - 29.95
Disputed dues of MSMED - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSMED - - - - - -
Total 158 28.37 - - - 23.95
Notes:-
a) Trade payable are non interest bearing and generally have credit period of 30-90 days.
b) For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 28 Tin Lakhs
¢) Total outstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other Trade payables 8.30 27.00
Payable to related parties 2,406.22 295
2,414.52 29.95
d) Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
< Ladds
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2028
i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year; 325 -

i) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year; - -
iii} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 atong with the amounts - -
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.

v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as - -
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the

MSMED Act 2006

The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as
defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been made in the standalone financial statements as at the reporting date based on the information received and
available with the Company.

18  Other Financial Habilities
< in Lakhs
Partleutars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Employee Dues 17.34 9.82

17.34 9.82

19  Other current Habilities

¥in Lakhs

Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2025 31 dMarch 2024
Other Liabilities
Advance from customers - 4.06
GST payable 4593 -
TDS payable 197.83 898
ESIC payable 017 012
PF employee payable 1.53 1.26

24546 14.49




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

D. The movement in deferred tax assets / (liabilities) during the year ended March 31 are give below: Zin Lakhs
Particulars ised i i
Balance as at R::;’f::fﬁi,: P :}?:* Balance as at
1 April 2024 ng 31 March 2025
year
Difference between WDV of Property, Plant And Equipment as per book and income tax 43.92) (9.75) (63.67)
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial instrument at {1,598.83) 319.43 (1,279.40)
FVTPI.
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial instrument at (56.65) 11.63 (45.03)
amortised cost
MAT credit entitlement - -
(1,699.40) 321,31 (1,378.09)
Particulars ised i i
Balance as at R::;i‘::ﬁ;: p::‘?t Balance as at
1 April 2023 £ 31 March 2024
year
Difference between WDV of Property, Plant And Equipment as per book and income tax (34.78) (9.14) 43.92)
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial instrument at - (1,598.83) {1,598.83)
FVTPL
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial instrument at - (56.65) (56.65)
amortised cost

(34.78) (1,664.62) (1,699.40)




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2025

20

21

23

24

25

Revenue from operations

< in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the yearended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers 5,790.24 860.17
5,790.24 860.17
Other income
¥ in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest income
- on Income tax refund 3.88 0.71
Discount receievd/Rewards points 0.36 0.20
Misc. income 0.32 2.87
Interest on term deposits 73.58 166.71
Fair value gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL - 6,352.62
Short Tem Gain on Debt Mutual Fund 4.62 -
Dividend Received on units of Indus Infra Trust (InvIT ) 4,040.16 -
Other Income on units of Indus Infra Trust (InvIT) 33.23 -
Interest Received on units of Indus Infra Trust (InvIT) 3,741.13 -
Liabilities no longer required written back - 0.22
7,897.28 6,523.33
Civil Cost
% in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Diesel and petrol 60.55 42,60
Legal and professional and technical 97.03 85.50
Repair and maintenance 13.32 9.18
Construction Material 271.78 -
Safety And Security Tool 0.70 -
Work Contract Service 4,449.20 -
Labour & Wages 291 -
Testing and quality control 8.87 1240
4,904.36 149.68
Employee benefits expenses
% in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 260.10 162.97
Contributlon to provident and other fund 11.37 8.98
273.63 184.98
Finance costs
Z in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on Borrowing
- on debentures 83210 114.04
- on others 1,468.41 47.59
2,347.61 173.74
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Z in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 152.80 113.50

152.80 113.50




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

26 Other expenses

¥ in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fair value loss on financial assets measured at FVTPL 1,269.20 -
Tour And Traveling 35.42 20.58
Insurance 7.77 8.29
Freight\loading and unloading 0.77 -
Parking And Toll Tax. 7.38 417
Annual Maintaince Charges 745 4.02
Office Exp. 3.89 3.78
Electricity 2.29 341
Office Rent 6.62 3.00
Service Charges 0.91 2.08
Machinery Rent 749 -
Postage 135 2.07
Vehicle Repair/Maintenance 0.84 -
Audit Fees 1.60 1.75
Gst Expenses 116 -
ROC Filing Fee 0.05 1.30
Miscellaneous expenses 13.81 8.83
1,368.00 63.28
27 Tax expense
The major component of income tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 are as under:
A. Income tax (income) / expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
% in Lakhs
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current tax
Current tax on profit for the year 47255 44.25
Adjustment of income tax related to earlier periods (21.57) -
Deferred tax
Attributable to-
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (refer note D below) {321.31) 1,664.62
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 129.67 1,708.87
B. Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate:
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit before tax 4,641.07 6,698.32
Tax using the Company’s statutory tax rate 1,168.06 1,685.83
Non deductible expenses (1,038.39) 23.04
Taxation in respect of earlfer years - -
Others - -
Tax expense 129.67 1,708.87
C. Deferred tax balance disclosed in Balance Sheet
As on 31 March 2025 < in Lakhs
Particulars Deferred tax Deferred tax Net deferred tax
(assets) liabilities  (assets)/ liabilities
Difference between WDV of Property, Plant And Equipment as per - (53.67) (53.67)
book and income tax
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial - (1,279.40) (1,279.40)
instrument at FVTPL
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial - (45.03) (45.03)
instrument at amortised cost
MAT credit entitlement - - -
Net deferred tax (assets) / liabilities - (1,378.09) (1,378.09)
As on 31 March 2024 < inn Lakhs
Particulars Deferred tax Deferred tax Net deferred tax
(assets) Habilities  (assets) / liabilities
Difference between WDV of Property, Plant And Equipment as per - (43.92) (43.92)
book and income tax
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial - (1,598.83) (1,598.83)
instrument at FVIPL
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial - (56.65) (56.65)
instrument at amortised cost
Net deferred tax (assets) / liabilities - (1,699.40) (1,699.40)
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28 Related party disclosure
Related party disclosures as required under the Indian Accounting Standard (AS) - 24 on “Related Party Disclosures” are given below:

A. Related parties with whom the company had transactions during the year

(a) Key Management Personnel ("KMP"):

Mr. Aditya Agarwal (Resigned w.e.f. 16.10.2023) Director

Mr. Lokesh Agarwal (Resigned w.e.f. 16.10.2023) Director

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mehta (Appointed w.e.£.16.10.2023) Director

Mr. Kishan Kantibhai Vachhani (Appointed w.e.f.16.10.2023) Director

Mr, Rahul Agarwal (Appointed w.e.f.16,10.2023) Director

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Agarwal (Relatives of KMPs) (Ceased w.e.f.16.10.2023) Father of Mr. Lokesh Agarwal
Ms. Deepali Mundra (Appointed w.e.f. 08.01.2024) Company Secretary

Mr. Harish Agarwal (Relatives of KMPs} Father of Mr. Rahul Agarwal
Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal (Relatives of KMPs) Mother of Mr. Rahul Agarwal

(b} Enterprise in which KMP exercise significant influence
Lokesh Builders Private Limited (upto 16.10.2023)
G R Infraprojects Limited

(c) Associates Enterprises
Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited

(d) Entity in which company holds interest as sponsor

Sponsor
Indus Infra Trust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT) ("InvIT")
Subsidiaries of InvIT
GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited
GR Aligarh Kanpur Highway Private Limited
GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited
GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited
GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
GR Sangli Solapur Highway Private Limited
Porbandar Dwarka Expressway Private Limited
Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private Limited
GR Galgalia Bahadurganj Highway Private Limited

B. Related party transactions with and its closing balances

Key Management Personnel ("KMP") & Enterprise in which KMP exercise significant influence and its closing balances 2 in Lakhs
Nature of transaction Transaction value
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(a) Loan received
(i) Lokesh Builders Private Limited - 70.00
(i) Mr. Harish Agarwal 1,965.00 41850.00
(iii) Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal - 1000.00
(b) Loan repaid
(i) Mr. Mahendra Kumar Agarwal - 24.84
(i) Lokesh Builders Private Limited - 70.00
(i) Mr. Harish Agarwal 1,301.50 .
(iv) Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal 62.40 .
() Interest paid on unsecured loan
(i) Mr. Mahendra Kumar Agarwal - 1.35
(ii) Mr. Harish Agarwal 1,340.10 -
(d) Remuneration paid
(i) Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mehta 25.47 2354
(ii) Mr. Kishan Kantibhai Vachhani 2231 20.56
(iil) Ms. Deepali Mundra 455 0.97
(e) Interest and Dividend received,other receipt
(i) Indus Infra Trust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT) ("InvIT") 7,814.52 66,450.00
(f) Sale of service
G R Infraprojects Limited 651.73 332.03
GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 266.25 -
GR Aligarh Kanpur Highway Private Limited 609.84 -
GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited 47372 -
GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 899.96 -
GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 778.74 -
GR Sangli Solapur Highway Private Limited 132,51 -
Porbandar Dwarka Expressway Private Limited 603.18 -
Varanasi Samgam Expressway Private Limited 72534 -
Indus Infra Trust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT) ("InvIT") 28.55
(g) Purchase of Goods\Service
G R Infraprojects Limited
(i) Works Contract Service 4,449.20 -
(if) Other goods and Service 24494 517
(h) Rurchase of Shares
urchase of Shares of Nagaur Mukwndgarh Highways Private Limitod - 1,117.65
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Balance outstanding Balance outstanding
receivable/payable receivable/payable

Particulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(a) Loan payable
(i) Mr. Mahendra Kumar Agarwal
(ii) Mr. Harish Agarwal -
43719.59 41850.00
(iil) Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal .
937.60 1080.00
(b) Remuneration payable
(i) Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mehta 112 1.65
(ii) Mr, Kishan Kantibhai Vachhani 206 1.94
(iif) Ms. Deepali Mundra 043 6.35
(c) Trade receivables
G R Infraprojects Limited 19221 57.10
GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 116.11 -
GR Aligarh Kanpur Highway Private Limited 519.24 "
GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private Limited 280.03
GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 419.87 -
GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 353.06 -
GR Sangli Solapur Highway Private Limited 36.26 -
Porbandar Dwarka Expressway Private Limited 340.90 -
Varanasi Samgam Expressway Private Limited 362.73 -
Indus Infra Trust (Formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT) (“InvIT") 28.55
(d) Trade payables
G R Infraprojects Limited
(i) Works Contract Service 2404.78 -
(i) Other goods and Service 145 295

C. Terms & Condition with Related Party

i)  The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more favourable than those available, or
those which might reasonably be expected to be available, in respect of similar transactions with non-key management personnel related entities on an
arm’s length basis.

i) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end
are unsecured and partialy interest {ree except loan taken and settlement occurs in cash as per the terms of the agreement.




Aadharshila Infratech Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

29
A.

30

=

Fair Value Measurements #

Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2025 < i Lakh
Fair Value
Level1- Level2- Level 3-
Particulars Cost#t FVTPL*  Amortised cost Total Quoted price in  Significant Significant Total
active markets  observable  unobservable ot
inputs inputs
Investment 1,154.32 71,407.17 - 72,561.49 - 7140717 - 71,407.17
Trade receivables - - 3,021.76 3,021.76 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 111.87 111.87 - - - -
Other bank balance - - 639.59 639.59 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 1.63 1.63 - - - -
Total Financial assets 1,154.32 71,407.17 3,774.85 76,336.34 - 71,407.17 - 71,407.17
Borrowings - - 8,080.18 8,080.18 - 8,080.18 - 8,080.18
Trade payable - - 2,411.27 2,411.27 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 17.34 17.34 - - - -
Total Financial liabilities - - 10,508.79 10,508.79 - 8,080.18 - 8,080.18
As at 31 March 2024  in Lakh
Fair Value
. : Level1- Level 2~ Level3-
Particulars Cost# FVTrL* Amortised cost Total Quoted pricein  Significant Significant Total
active markets  observable  unobservable

Investment 1,04835 72,802.62 - 73,850.97 - 72,802.62 - 72,802.62
Trade receivables - - 337.33 337.33 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 201.24 201.24 - - - -
Other bank balance B - 866.20 866.20 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 1.63 1.63 - - - -
‘Total Financial assets 1,048.35 72,802.62 1,406.40 75,257.37 - 72,802.62 - 72,802.62
Borrowings - - 14,888.93 14,888.93 - 14,888.93 - 14,888.93
Trade payable - - 29.95 29.95 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 9.82 9.82 - - - -
‘Total Financial liabilities - - 14,928.70 14,928.70 - 14,888.93 - 14,888.93

#Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27.
# Considering that there is no item of fair value through other comprehensive income, the same is not disclosed.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 category above has been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

There have been no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the years.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value:

¢ Inputs included in Level 1 of Fair Value Hierarchy are based on prices quoted in stock exchange and/or NAV declared by the Funds.

¢ Inputs included in Level 2 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued based on inputs from banks and other recognised institutions.

 Inputs included in Level 3 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued using acceptable valuation techniques such as Net Asset Value and/or Discounted Cash Flow
Method.

Note: All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy described as above, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of cash and cash
equivalents and other receivables,

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits with banks. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties.

. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the company’s income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is
exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits with banks. The company’s exposure and credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties.

The carrying amount of following financial asscts represents the maximum credit exposure:

Other financial assets
This comprises mainly of deposits with banks . Credit risk arising from these construction assets is limited.

. Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees ("Rs."). The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is
exposed to interest rate risk resulting from fluctuations in interest rates. Company's borrowing includes loan taken loan from banks or financial institution &
unsecured loan from Parent Company. Summary of financial assets and financial liabilities has been provided below:
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E. Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest - bearing financial instrument as reported to management is as follows:
< in Lakh

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable-rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

1.63 163
8,080.18 14,868.93

Interest rate sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interest rates. The foilowing table demonstrates the sensitivity of
floating rate financial instruments to a reasonably possible change in interest rates. The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate
across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as
at that date. The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

¥ in Lakh
Sensitivity analysis Impacton  Impact on profit
profit before before tax

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest rate

- increase by 100 basis points (68.09) 148.89
- decrease by 100 basis points 68.09 (148.89)
F. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The
Company invest in liguid mutual funds to meet the immediate obligations.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted.

as at 31 March 2025 Carryin, Contractual cash flows
FYIng Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5
amount
year years
Borrowings (incl. current maturities) # 8,080.18 8,080.18 1,802.01 6,278.17 -
Trade payables 241452 2,414.52 2,414.52 - -
Other current financial liabilities 17.34 17.34 17.34 - -
Total 10,512.04 10,512,014 4,233.87 6,278.17 -
as at 31 March 2024 ) Carrvi Contractual cash flows
TIying Total Less than1 1-5 years More than 5
amount
year years
Borrowings (incl. current maturities) # 14,888.93 14,888.93 2,364.04 12,524.89 -
Trade payables 29.95 29.95 29.95 - -
Other current financial liabilities 9.82 9.82 9.82 - -
Total 14,928.70 14,928.70 2,403.81 12,524.89 -

# Borrowing includes unamortised transaction cost paid to lenders on upfront basis and interest accrued.
31 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes paid-up equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equhty holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, to equity share holders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic cenditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowing during the year. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is net debt divided by
fotal equity. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and short-term deposits.

¥ in Lakh
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
X in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs
Total borrowings 8,080.18 14,888.93
Less: cash and cash equivalents 111.87 201.24
Adjusted net debt 7,968.31 14,687.69
Equity share capital 1.00 1.00
Instruments entirely equity in 9,409.45 9,409.45
nature
Other equity 10,196.86 5,579.50
Total equity 19,607.31 14,989.95
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 041 0.98
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
32 Ratio 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 % change Reason for
change
1 Current Ratio (in times) 0.07 0.03 136.75% Increase in
(Current assets/ Current liabilities) current liability
2 Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 2.80 3.99 -29.85% Increase in
( Total Debt / Total Equity ) Unsecured
(Total Debt = Debt comprises of current borrowings( including current maturities of long term borrowing
borrowings), non current borrowings and interest accrued on borrowings.
Total Equity (net worth) = Equity share capital+Other equity + unsecured borrowing taken
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) 0.68 16.22 -95.83% Repayment
( (Earning before interest and tax and depreciation)/ (principal repayment of non-current secured
borrowings made during the period and finance costs) ) borrowing
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Return on equity ratio (%) 23.55% 32.83% -28.27% Decrease in profit
(Profit for the period or year / Net worth) .
(Net Worth: Equity share capital+Other equity + unsecured borrowing taken and outstanding }

Inventory turnover ratio (in times) - - 0.00% NA
( Revenue from operation { annualised) / Average Inventory}
Trade receivables turnover ratio {in times) 3.45 3.42 0.86% NA

{ Revenue from operation ( annualised) / Average account receivable)
(Average account receivable = Average trade receivables )

7 Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) 4.02 5.92 -32.14% Decrease in
( Purchases made during the year ( annualised) / Average account payable) current
outstandine
8 Net capifal turnover ratio (in times) (0.12) (0.02) 549.90% Increase in
( Revenue from operation ( annualised) /working capital) revenue from
(Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities) operation
9 Net profit ratio (%) 79.74% 572.12% -86.06% Decrease profit
(Profit/(loss) for the period/Revenue from operations) on investment by
FVTPL
10 Return on capital employed (%) 25.63% 23.52% 8.97% Increase in
(Profit before intrest and taxes for the period or year / Capital employed) current liabilities
(Capital employed = Total assets - Current liabilities)
11 Return on Investment (%) 9.10% 41.26% -77.95% Decrease profit
(Income generated from investment / Cost of investment ) on investment by
FVTPL

33

(0]

(i}

(iii} use carrying valucs of property, plant and

Explanation of transition to Ind AS
Last year was the Company's first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had
prepared these financial statements in accordance with Companies (Accounhng Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant

provisions of the Act {‘Previous GAAP.
The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in préparing these consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 including the

comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the opening Ind AS balance sheet on the date of transition i.e. 1 April 2023.

In preparing its Ind AS balance sheet as at 1 April 2023 and in presenting the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has adjusted
amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the
Company in restating its financial statements prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP and how the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the
Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

Optional exemptions availed

1 Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
As per Ind AS 101 an entity may elect to:
measure an item of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date

use a Previous GAAP revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment at or before the date of transition as deemed cost at the date of the revaluation,
provided the revaluation was, at the date of the revaluation, broadlv comparable to:

~ fair value;

- or cost or depreciated cost under Ind AS adjusted to reflect, for example, changes in a general or specific price index.

The elections under (i) and (ii) above are also available for intangible assets that meets the recognition criteria in Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets, (including reliable
measurement of original cost); and criteria in Ind AS 38 for revaluation (including the existence of an active market).

ible assets and i perties as on the date of transition to Ind AS (which are measured in accordance with Previous
GAAP and after making adj relating to d isstoning liabilitics prescribed undar Ind AS 101} if there has been no change in its functional currency on the date of transition.

As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under Previous GAAP for all the items of property, plant and equipment
as its deemed cost. The same election has been made in respect of intangible assets also.

Mandatory exceptions

1 Estimates
As per Ind AS 101, an entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of tmnsmou to Ind AS at the end of the comparative period presented in the entity’s Jast years was first
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as the case may be, should be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with the Previous GAAP unless there is objective
ovidonod that thono ostimates wora in orror. Howevor, the catimates should be adjusted to reflect any differences in accounting policics,

Ap por Ind Al 103, whero applisativn of Tad AS awjoivss an endily e iz vistoiee edinmbes ot wense wt seagoinsd amba Peeviony GAAR, D ativaies shanbd b mgede (o yeflee
conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet) or at the end of the comparative period (for p i parative information as per Ind
AS). :

The Company's estimates under Ind AS arc consistent with the above requi Key esti idered in preparation of the lidated financial that were not required

under the Previous GAAP are listed below:

Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL and/ or FVOCL

Impairment of financial asscts based on the expected credit loss model.

Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

2 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
As per Ind AS 101, an entity should apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition
to Ind AS. However, an catity may apply the derecognition requirements retrospectively from a date chosen by it if the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial asscts and
financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the derecognition principles of Ind AS 109 prospectively.

3 Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 10! requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances e tmg as on the datc of transition. Further, the standard permits

measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of ition if P ¢ application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial asscts based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of the financial assets
accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

There are no adjustments in equity and other comprehensive income as per previous GAAP and IND AS as at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022

Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022
¢ in Lakh

Particulars 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Equity under previous GAAP 659.28 388.93

Adjustments :

659.28 388.93

Equity under Ind AS
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34 Additional Information required by paragraph 2 of the general instructions for gr of C Financial pursuant to Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 :
% in Lakh
Asat 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
Net Assets Net Assets
Share in Profit/ (Loss) Share in Profit/ (Loss)
{Le. Total Assets less total Habilites) Lo, Total Assets legs total Habilites)
Particulars % Asof % Asof % Asof % Asaf
oonsolidated Net Consolidated consolidated Net « Consolidated
Assets Profit/ (Loss) Assets Profit/ (Loss)
2 in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs % in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs
1 Parent
Aadharshila [nfratech Private Limited 94.44% 19,606.31 97.76% 4,617.37 93.46% 1498895 101.39% 4,989.45
2 Associates
{Invetsments as per Equity Method)
Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited (28,62,300 equity shares of Rs. 10
cach) 5.56% 1,154.32 2.24% 10597 6.54% 1,048.35 -1.39% (68.23)
Total 100.00% 20,760.63 100.00% 4,723.33 100.00% 16,037.30 100.00% 4,921.22
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35 Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) 115, Revenue from: Condszcts with Customers

A. Disaggregated revenue information

i) Type of service rendered
Sale of services
Total
ii) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography

India

Total

iii) Timing of Revenue recognition
Revenue from goods and services transferred to customers over time
Total

B. Contract balances:

¥ in Lakh

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers.

Trade receivables
Opening balance
Closine balance

The increase / decrease in trade receivables is mainly due to increase / decrease in sales.

C. The amount of revenue recognized from

- Performance obligations satisfied in previous years

- Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the vear

D. Performance obligation
i) Sales of Services:

5,790.24 860.17
5,790.24 860,17
5,790.24 860.17
5,790.24 860.17
5,790.24 860.17
5,790.24 860,17
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
337.33 165.95
3.021.76 337.33
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as the assets is under control of customer and they simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Company. The Company received progressive payment toward provision of services.

E. Reconciliation of the amount for revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass swith the contracted price:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue as per contracted price 5,790.24 860.17
Adjustments
Claims - -
Variable consideration - performance bonus - -
Revenue from contract with customers 5,790.24 860.17
a6 Larninga par ahare
7 in Lakh
Partlculars Ref Wote Wo. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
liace value per equity share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
(a) Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders after preference share dividend 3,667.37 4,921.22
(b)  Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
(¢)  Equitv shares issued during the vear - -
(d) Number of equity shares at the end of the year 10,000 10,000
()  Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS 10,000 10,000
(f)  Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS 10,000 10,000
Earnings Per Share (in Rs.):
- Basic earning per share (a/e) 36,673.66 49,212.18
- Diluted earning per share (a/f) 36,673.66 49,212.18

Note:

Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of equity shares cutstanding st the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of
equity shares issued during the year multiplied by the time weighting factor. The fime weighting factor is the number of days for which the

specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of total number of days during the year.
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Segment reporting

Basis for segmentation

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting", The Company is engaged in providing Testing and Analysis services
related to road construction activities, along with civil work (Operations & Maintenance). Additionally, the Company is also a sponsor of a Trust
ie. Indus Infra Trust (formerly known as Bharat Highways InvIT), and earns returns on its sponsorship investments. The Director of the
Company allocate the resources and assess the performance of the Company, thus he is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The
CODM monitors the operating results of the business as a single segment, hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed.

Information about geographical areas
As the Company operates in India only, hence no separate geographical segment is dlsclosed

Information about major customers
Revenue of Rs 4268.79 lakhs are derived from six customer which amounts to 10% or more of the Company’s revenue.

Contingent liabilities and commitments As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

A. Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

(i) Indirect tax matters
Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited 3,530.80 -
(ii) Direct tax matters - -

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees :

Guarantees given to third parties - -
Total 3,530.80 -

B. Commitments
(a) Other Commitments -

Other Statutory Information

()  The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.

(i) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(i) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(iv) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(V) The Company have not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(@) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like an hehalf of the TTHimate Beneficiaries,

(V) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(vil) The Company do not have any immovable property so requirements related to disclosure of "title deed not being held inn the name of the
company" is not applicable to the Company.

(viii) The Company is not required to file quarterly returns/statements with the banks and financial institutions.

(ix) During the financial year, the Company's NABL accreditation was withdrawn by the National Accreditation Board for Testing and
Calibration Laboratories (NABL) pursuant to a complaint received. The Company intends to reapply for accreditation after the applicable
cooling-off period. During the currency of the above intervening period, there is no impact on the ongoing business operations and cash
flows of the Company.

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified whenever necessary to confirm this year's classification.
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Form AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint
ventures.

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts Rs. in Hundred)

1. Name of the subsidiary -

The date since when subsidiary was acquired -

3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding -
company’s reporting period
4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant -
financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.
5. Share capital -
6. Reserves & surplus -
7. Total assets -
8
9

Total Liabilities -

. Investments -
10. Turnover -
11. Profit before taxation -
12. Provision for taxation -
13. Profit after taxation ' -
14. Proposed Dividend -
15. Extent of shareholding (in %) -

Note:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - NIL




Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint

Ventures

A. Name of Associate/Joint Ventures

Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2025
2. Date f)n which thg Associate or Joint Venture was 02.11.2023
associated or acquired
3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end
Number of Shares 28,62,300

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint
Venture

Rs. 1,116.58 Lakhs

Extent of Holding %

21%

4. Description of how there is significant influence

Company is holding more than 20% share capital
of the Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private
Limited

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated

Not Applicable

6. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

Rs. 1,166.68 Lakhs

7. Profit or Loss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation

Rs. 105.97 Lakhs

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

Rs. 398.66 Lakhs

Note:

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - NIL
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year - NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

C%M&fﬂy v e
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